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          1                      P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S

          2             THE DEPUTY CLERK:  CIVIL ACTION 98-1232, UNITED

          3   STATES OF AMERICA VERSUS MICROSOFT CORPORATION, AND 98-1233,

          4   STATE OF NEW YORK, ET AL. VERSUS MICROSOFT CORPORATION.

          5             PHILLIP MALONE, STEPHEN HOUCK AND DAVID BOIES FOR

          6   THE PLAINTIFFS.

          7             JOHN WARDEN, STEVEN HOLLEY, RICHARD UROWSKY AND

          8   WILLIAM NEUKOM FOR THE DEFENDANT.

          9             THE COURT:  COUNSEL, APPROACH THE BENCH, PLEASE.

         10             THIS IS OFF THE RECORD.

         11             (DISCUSSION AT THE BENCH OFF THE RECORD.)

         12             (IN OPEN COURT.)

         13             THE COURT:  GOOD MORNING, MR. MYHRVOLD.

         14             THE WITNESS:  GOOD MORNING, YOUR HONOR.

         15             THE COURT:  I REMIND YOU, SIR, THAT YOU'RE STILL

         16   UNDER OATH.

         17             THE WITNESS:  YES, SIR.

         18             (CAMERON MYHRVOLD, DEFENDANT'S WITNESS, PREVIOUSLY

         19   SWORN.)

         20                  CROSS-EXAMINATION (CONTINUED)

         21   BY MR. BOIES:

         22   Q.  GOOD MORNING, MR. MYHRVOLD.

         23   A.  GOOD MORNING, MR. BOIES.

         24   Q.  I'D LIKE TO PICK UP WHERE WE LEFT OFF YESTERDAY, AND

         25   THAT WAS TALKING ABOUT THE ONLINE SERVICES FOLDER ON
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          1   WINDOWS 98.  AND, IN THAT CONNECTION, I WOULD LIKE TO GIVE

          2   YOU A COPY OF YESTERDAY'S TRANSCRIPT, SO THAT YOU'VE GOT THE

          3   TESTIMONY IN CONTEXT.

          4   A.  THANK YOU.

          5   Q.  AND I'D LIKE TO DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO TWO PORTIONS OF

          6   THAT TRANSCRIPT.

          7             FIRST, I'D LIKE TO DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO PAGE

          8   74, LINES 15 THROUGH 19, IN WHICH I ASKED YOU:

          9             "QUESTION:  MR. MYHRVOLD, YOU KNOW PERFECTLY WELL

         10   THAT AOL AND EVERYONE ELSE USING THE ONLINE SERVICES FOLDER

         11   HAS TO COMMIT THAT 85 PERCENT OF THE BROWSERS THEY SHIP TO

         12   CUSTOMERS WOULD BE IE.

         13             "ANSWER:  THAT'S ABSOLUTELY WRONG."

         14             AND THEN ON PAGE 77, LINES 14 THROUGH 19.

         15             "QUESTION:  NOW, MR. MYHRVOLD, ON MAY 2, 1996, DID

         16   YOU BELIEVE THAT EVERYONE WHO WAS GOING TO BE IN THE ONLINE

         17   SERVICES FOLDER HAD TO COMMIT THAT 85 PERCENT OF THE

         18   BROWSERS THEY SHIPPED TO CUSTOMERS WILL BE IE?  DID YOU

         19   BELIEVE THAT THEN?

         20             "ANSWER:  YES, BECAUSE I SENT THIS E-MAIL."

         21             NOW, DO I UNDERSTAND THOSE TWO ANSWERS TO MEAN

         22   THAT YOU THOUGHT IN MAY THAT THERE WOULD BE AN 85 PERCENT

         23   REQUIREMENT, BUT THAT THEREAFTER YOU LEARNED THAT THERE WAS

         24   NOT SUCH A REQUIREMENT?

         25   A.  MY FIRST ANSWER WHERE I SAID, "NO THAT'S ABSOLUTELY

                                                                               6

          1   WRONG," WAS WHEN YOU SAID, "YOU KNOW PERFECTLY WELL."  SO I

          2   WAS ANSWERING ABOUT MY KNOWLEDGE.

          3             AND I'M SURE I HAVE SEEN THE CONTRACTS FOR THE

          4   ONLINE SERVICE FOLDER.  I CERTAINLY HAVE NOT READ THEM IN

          5   THE PAST YEAR.  I'M NOT FAMILIAR WITH ALL THE REQUIREMENTS,

          6   SO I CANNOT LOOK YOU IN THE EYE, SIR, AND SAY THERE'S AN 85

          7   PERCENT REQUIREMENT IN ALL THOSE CONTRACTS.  THERE MAY BE,

          8   BUT I DON'T KNOW THAT TO BE A FACT.

          9   Q.  ALL RIGHT.

         10   A.  AND AS I EXPLAINED, BRAD CHASE WILL COVER ALL OF THOSE

         11   AGREEMENTS, I THINK, IN GREAT DETAIL IN HIS TESTIMONY.

         12   Q.  LET ME JUST CLARIFY THAT BECAUSE I THINK THAT'S A

         13   HELPFUL CLARIFICATION.

         14             WHEN I ASKED YOU ON PAGE 74, LINES 15 THROUGH 19,

         15   WHETHER YOU YOU KNEW PERFECTLY WELL THAT AOL AND EVERYONE

         16   ELSE IN THE OLS FOLDER HAD TO COMMIT THAT 85 PERCENT OF THE

         17   BROWSERS THEY SHIPPED WOULD BE IE, AND YOU SAID, "THAT'S

         18   ABSOLUTELY WRONG," WHAT YOU MEANT TO BE SAYING WAS THAT IT

         19   MAY BE THE CASE THAT THAT IS TRUE, BUT IT'S ABSOLUTELY WRONG

         20   THAT YOU KNOW IT?

         21   A.  YES, SIR.  THAT'S EXACTLY HOW I MEANT TO ANSWER THE

         22   QUESTION.  THAT'S WHAT I MEANT WHEN I SAID THIS.

         23   Q.  NOW, YOU SAY THAT YOU'VE NOT HAD A CHANCE TO REVIEW THE

         24   CONTRACTS RECENTLY.

         25             LET ME SHOW YOU GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1833 AND SEE IF
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          1   THIS REFRESHES YOUR RECOLLECTION THAT, AT LEAST AT SOME TIME

          2   IN THE PAST, YOU WERE AWARE THAT EACH OF THE COMPANIES IN

          3   THE ONLINE SERVICES FOLDER HAD MADE AN 85 PERCENT

          4   COMMITMENT.

          5   A.  OKAY.  IT IS NOT MY TESTIMONY THAT I HAVE NEVER SEEN

          6   THESE CONTRACTS.  AT SOME POINT IN TIME, I'M SURE I WOULD

          7   HAVE HAD SOME ACQUAINTANCE WITH EACH OF THEM, BUT NOT AT THE

          8   SAME TIME AND NEVER DID I READ THEM THROUGH TO CHECK THIS

          9   PARTICULAR POINT.  THAT'S ALL.

         10             MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I WOULD OFFER GOVERNMENT

         11   EXHIBIT 1833.

         12             MR. HOLLEY:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

         13             THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 1833 IS ADMITTED.

         14                                   (WHEREUPON, PLAINTIFFS'

         15                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 1833 WAS

         16                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)

         17   BY MR. BOIES:

         18   Q.  THE SECOND E-MAIL ON GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1833 IS AN

         19   E-MAIL FROM YOU DATED DECEMBER 18, 1996, CORRECT, SIR?

         20   A.  YES.  THAT'S CORRECT.

         21   Q.  AND YOU ATTACH TO THAT A LIST OF ISP'S, CORRECT, SIR?

         22   A.  YES.

         23   Q.  A LIST OF NORTH AMERICAN ISP'S; IS THAT CORRECT?

         24   A.  I'M SURE THERE'S SOME HERE FROM -- YES.  NORTH AMERICA.

         25   THAT WOULD BE RIGHT.
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          1   Q.  AND IF YOU LOOK AT THE FIRST FOUR AT THE VERY TOP OF THE

          2   PAGE --

          3   A.  YES.

          4   Q.  -- THEY ARE AMERICA ONLINE, COMPUSERVE, PRODIGY AND AT&T

          5   WORLDNET, CORRECT?

          6   A.  YES.

          7   Q.  AND THOSE ARE THE FOUR COMPANIES THAT ARE IN THE ONLINE

          8   SERVICES FOLDER, CORRECT?

          9   A.  YES.  AND THERE WAS ALSO A KIDS SERVICE CALLED "WOW" AT

         10   ONE TIME IN THE ONLINE SERVICE FOLDER AS WELL.

         11   Q.  AND EACH OF THE FOUR THAT ARE LISTED HERE ARE SHOWN IN

         12   THIS DOCUMENT THAT YOU SENT AROUND AS HAVING AN 85 PERCENT

         13   COMMITMENT ON SHIPMENTS, CORRECT?

         14   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

         15   Q.  NOW, IN ADDITION TO SENDING THIS DOCUMENT AROUND, WAS

         16   THIS PREPARED BY YOU OR BY PEOPLE WORKING UNDER YOUR

         17   DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION?

         18   A.  YES.  I DON'T KNOW IF I PREPARED THIS OR OTHER PEOPLE

         19   PREPARED IT AND I COMPILED IT, OR EXACTLY HOW IT WAS

         20   CREATED, BUT IT WOULD HAVE BEEN DONE BY MYSELF OR SOMEONE IN

         21   MY GROUP.

         22   Q.  NOW, WITH RESPECT TO AOL, IN PARTICULAR, AM I CORRECT

         23   THAT ONE OF THE THINGS THAT WAS VERY IMPORTANT TO MICROSOFT

         24   WAS NOT ONLY TO GET AOL -- AND PERHAPS OTHER ISP'S; I DON'T

         25   MEAN TO LIMIT IT TO AOL -- NOT ONLY TO SHIP IE, BUT ALSO TO
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          1   CONVERT THEIR INSTALLED BASE TO IE?

          2   A.  CERTAINLY FOR ISP'S; I REALLY CAN'T SPEAK TO AOL.  I DID

          3   NOT MANAGE THAT RELATIONSHIP.  BRAD CHASE MANAGED THAT

          4   RELATIONSHIP.  CERTAINLY I CAN TALK ABOUT WHAT WE'VE DONE

          5   WITH ISP'S.  I CANNOT SAY WITH ACCURACY OR PRECISION WHAT WE

          6   DID WITH AOL BECAUSE THAT WAS NOT MY RESPONSIBILITY.

          7   Q.  WELL, YOU SAY THAT WHAT YOU DID WITH AOL WAS NOT YOUR

          8   RESPONSIBILITY.  IT WAS SOMETHING THAT YOU FOLLOWED CLOSELY,

          9   WAS IT NOT, SIR, AT THE TIME?

         10             YOU MAY NOT HAVE LOOKED AT IT RECENTLY IN

         11   PREPARATION FOR YOUR TESTIMONY, BUT YOU CERTAINLY FOLLOWED

         12   IT CLOSELY AT THE TIME, CORRECT?

         13   A.  WELL, I THINK IT'S A LOT LIKE IE MARKET SHARE OR USAGE

         14   SHARE.  I CERTAINLY CARED ABOUT THAT, BUT I DID NOT

         15   DETERMINE THAT MYSELF.  I WOULD LOOK TO OTHERS TO TELL ME

         16   ABOUT WHAT THAT WAS, AND STRICTLY SPEAKING, AOL WAS NOT MY

         17   RESPONSIBILITY.

         18             I WOULD INCLUDE IT ON DOCUMENTS LIKE THIS ONE FOR

         19   THE SAKE OF COMPLETENESS SO THAT WE WERE LOOKING AT A

         20   COMPLETE VIEW OF THE MARKET, BUT, AGAIN, IT WASN'T MY

         21   RESPONSIBILITY.

         22             SO I GUESS, SIR, TO ANSWER YOUR QUESTION, I WAS

         23   AWARE OF WHAT WAS GOING ON.  I WOULDN'T SAY I FOLLOWED IT

         24   CLOSELY.

         25   Q.  LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 834.
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          1   A.  IS THAT ONE I ALREADY HAVE?

          2   Q.  IT IS ONE THAT HAS BEEN ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE ALREADY,

          3   AND I THINK YOU ARE BEING HANDED A COPY.

          4   A.  OKAY.  THANK YOU.

          5   Q.  NOW, AM I CORRECT THAT THE E-MAIL ON THE SECOND PAGE IS

          6   AN E-MAIL THAT YOU YOU WROTE AND SENT ON DECEMBER 9, 1997?

          7   A.  YES.

          8   Q.  AND YOU SHOW COPIES TO A NUMBER OF PEOPLE.  DO THOSE

          9   PEOPLE WORK FOR YOU OR SOMEBODY ELSE?

         10   A.  IT'S A COMBINATION.  SOME OF THEM WORK FOR ME AND OTHERS

         11   DON'T.

         12   Q.  AND YOU WERE ASKING THEM TO SUPPLY INFORMATION, CORRECT,

         13   SIR?

         14   A.  YES.  I AM BEING ASKED IN THE ORIGINAL E-MAIL TO

         15   CONTRIBUTE TO SOME RESEARCH THAT THOMAS IS DOING ON SUN

         16   MICROSYSTEMS, AND SO I AM -- AND IT SEEMS TO ME FAIRLY

         17   URGENTLY.  SO I SENT OUT THE MAIL TO TRY AND GET PEOPLE TO

         18   HELP HIM, SINCE I DID NOT HAVE THE DATA AT MY FINGERTIPS

         19   THAT HE WANTED.

         20   Q.  AND ONE OF THE RESPONSES IS THE FIRST E-MAIL HERE,

         21   CORRECT, SIR?

         22   A.  YES.

         23   Q.  AND IS THE AUTHOR OF THAT E-MAIL SOMEBODY WHO WORKS FOR

         24   YOU?

         25   A.  MAURICIO WORKED FOR ME AT ONE TIME, AND THEN BECAUSE HIS
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          1   BUSINESS REALLY WAS JUST AOL AND SINCE I WAS NOT THE

          2   EXECUTIVE IN CHARGE OF THE AOL RELATIONSHIP, HE WENT TO WORK

          3   FOR MR. CHASE.  I'M NOT EXACTLY SURE WHEN THAT WAS.  I DON'T

          4   BELIEVE MAURICIO WAS WORKING FOR ME AT THIS TIME.

          5   Q.  THIS TIME IS DECEMBER OF 1997, CORRECT, SIR?

          6   A.  CORRECT.  I DON'T THINK HE WAS WORKING FOR ME AT THIS

          7   TIME.

          8   Q.  HE WRITES YOU THIS MEMORANDUM, CORRECT?

          9   A.  WELL, HE SENDS A PIECE OF E-MAIL, YES.

         10   Q.  HE SENDS A PIECE OF E-MAIL TO YOU, CORRECT?

         11   A.  TO ME, YES.  THAT'S RIGHT.

         12   Q.  OKAY.  AND IN THAT, HE IS SETTING FORTH INTERNET

         13   EXPLORER'S STATUS AT AOL, CORRECT?

         14   A.  I THINK THE MAIN THRUST OF THE E-MAIL WAS ACTUALLY ON

         15   THEIR USE OF SERVERS BECAUSE THAT'S THOMAS' QUESTION, BUT HE

         16   DOES INCLUDE INFORMATION HERE ON BROWSER USAGE AND INTERNET

         17   EXPLORER'S STATUS.

         18   Q.  WELL, HE DOESN'T SAY WHAT THE PRIMARY PURPOSE IS IN THE

         19   E-MAIL ITSELF, DOES HE?

         20   A.  NO, BUT THOMAS' QUESTIONS HAVE TO DO WITH SERVERS SINCE

         21   THAT'S WHAT SUN SELLS.  SUN DOES NOT SELL A BROWSER THAT I'M

         22   AWARE OF.

         23   Q.  MR. MYHRVOLD, THOMAS' QUESTIONS WERE NOT LIMITED JUST TO

         24   SUN OR SERVERS, WERE THEY?  THEY ASKED ABOUT SUN AND THEY

         25   ASKED ABOUT ISP SHARE, RIGHT?  THEY ASKED ABOUT BOTH OF
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          1   THOSE THINGS.

          2   A.  ISP SHARE OF SUN SERVERS, SIR.  I MEAN, I KNOW WHAT

          3   THOMAS WAS WORKING ON.  AND THOMAS WAS WORKING ON AN

          4   ANALYSIS OF SUN.

          5   Q.  SIR, THE RESPONSE -- FIRST OF ALL, THE SUBJECT OF THE

          6   RESPONSE IS SUN AND TOP ISP'S, TELCOS, AND THERE ARE TWO

          7   PARTS OF THIS.  ONE IS SERVER PLATFORMS.  DO YOU SEE THAT?

          8   A.  I CERTAINLY SEE THAT IN MAURICIO'S RESPONSE, YES.

          9   Q.  AND THEN, SECOND, IE SHARE FORECAST FOR FY98 AT AOL,

         10   CORRECT, SIR?

         11   A.  YES.

         12   Q.  THAT'S AT LEAST WHAT THIS PERSON THOUGHT HE WAS

         13   RESPONDING TO, CORRECT?

         14   A.  WELL, I DON'T KNOW IF IT'S WORTH DEBATING WITH YOU.  THE

         15   E-MAIL FROM ME AND THE E-MAIL FROM THOMAS IS ABOUT SUN

         16   SERVERS.  MAURICIO CLEARLY INCLUDES, AS I MENTIONED, A

         17   SECTION ON BROWSER USAGE AND INTERNET EXPLORER STATUS.

         18             I DON'T KNOW HOW HE COULD THINK THAT WAS RELEVANT

         19   TO SUN MICROSYSTEMS, BUT HE INCLUDED IT, I SUPPOSE, FOR SAKE

         20   OF COMPLETENESS.  MAYBE THIS WAS -- I DON'T KNOW --

         21   SOMETHING HE HAD -- PART OF A STATUS REPORT, SO HE JUST

         22   COPIED BOTH PIECES.  I DON'T KNOW.

         23   Q.  YOU THINK HE JUST DECIDED TO THROW THIS IN; THAT'S WHAT

         24   YOU'RE TESTIFYING TO?

         25   A.  WELL, THERE'S NOTHING IN EITHER -- I DON'T KNOW WHY HE
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          1   PUT IT IN, SIR.  I CERTAINLY DON'T SEE IT IN THE PREVIOUS

          2   E-MAILS.  DO YOU?

          3   Q.  YES, SIR, I DO.  AND I DON'T USUALLY LIKE TO ANSWER

          4   QUESTIONS, BUT LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THIS.  ALL

          5   RIGHT?

          6             LET ME GO TO THE VERY FIRST E-MAIL FROM THOMAS --

          7   ALL RIGHT -- WHERE IT SAYS AT THE VERY BOTTOM OF THE PAGE --

          8   BOTTOM OF THE SECOND PAGE -- "DAN BOURGOIN IS ALSO TRYING TO

          9   WRITE A SLIDE FOR ME ON THE OVERALL ISP MARKET."

         10             DO YOU SEE THAT?

         11   A.  I DO, SIR, AND THOMAS THERE IS TALKING ABOUT SUN'S

         12   POSITION IN THE OVERALL ISP MARKET BECAUSE THE ONLY THING

         13   THOMAS DID IN THIS PRESENTATION WAS TALK ABOUT SUN.

         14   Q.  LET ME SEE IF WE CAN MOVE THIS ALONG, MR. MYHRVOLD.

         15   HOWEVER YOU INTERPRET THIS, IS IT CLEAR TO YOU THAT THE

         16   PERSON WHO WAS RESPONDING TO YOU AND THOMAS KOLL INTERPRETED

         17   IT AS CALLING FOR TWO THINGS:  ONE WAS SERVER PLATFORMS AND

         18   THE OTHER WAS IE SHARE AT AOL?

         19   A.  MAURICIO CLEARLY ANSWERED THE QUESTION THAT WAY.  I

         20   CANNOT TELL YOU WHY HE DID.

         21   Q.  OKAY.  BUT WHEN HE ANSWERED THE QUESTION THAT WAY, YOU

         22   GOT THIS, RIGHT?

         23   A.  I DID RECEIVE THIS E-MAIL.  THAT IS CORRECT.

         24   Q.  AND IF WE CAN GO TO THE TOP OF THE SECOND PAGE, WHAT

         25   THIS E-MAIL DOES, AMONG OTHER THINGS, IS TO SHOW HOW IE
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          1   SHARE OF USERS HAD INCREASED SHARPLY, CORRECT, SIR?

          2   A.  WHERE ARE YOU?

          3   Q.  WELL, I WAS LOOKING AT THE TOP OF THE SECOND PAGE WHERE

          4   IT SAYS "IE SHARE (USERS)," AND IT THEN SHOWS HOW IT HAD

          5   INCREASED FROM LESS THAN 2 MILLION USERS IN THE THIRD

          6   QUARTER OF FISCAL YEAR 1997, TO 12-1/2 MILLION USERS IN THE

          7   THIRD QUARTER OF 1998, AND THEN INCREASED ANOTHER MILLION

          8   USERS THE FOLLOWING QUARTER.

          9             DO YOU SEE THAT?

         10   A.  YES, I DO.

         11   Q.  AND THIS IS DESCRIBED AS A RESULT OF AOL FORCE-FEEDING

         12   IE TO ITS SUBSCRIBER BASE.  DO YOU SEE THAT?

         13   A.  I SEE HOW IN THE LINE BENEATH THAT HE CIRCLES SOMETHING

         14   AND DRAWS IT DOWN TO A BOX, YES.

         15   Q.  WELL, SIR, YOU GOT THIS MEMO AT THE TIME.

         16   A.  IT'S NOT A MEMO, SIR.  IT'S A PIECE OF E-MAIL.

         17   Q.  A PIECE OF E-MAIL.

         18             YOU GOT THIS PIECE OF E-MAIL AT THE TIME, CORRECT,

         19   SIR?  AND YOU KNEW AT THE TIME THAT WHEN, AS YOU PUT IT, HE

         20   DRAWS A CIRCLE WITH A BOX AND A LINE, THAT HE IS SAYING THAT

         21   THE DRAMATIC INCREASE IN WINDOWS 32 IE USERS FROM 1.1

         22   MILLION IN THE FOURTH QUARTER OF 1997, FISCAL YEAR, TO 4-1/2

         23   MILLION, ONE QUARTER LATER, WAS DUE TO THE FACT THAT AOL HAD

         24   FORCE-FED THE IE BROWSER TO AOL'S SUBSCRIBER BASE, CORRECT?

         25   A.  AOL IS REALLY NOT MY AREA OF SPECIALTY.  I DID NOT ASK
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          1   MAURICIO FOR THIS INFORMATION.  I DIDN'T FOCUS ON IT ON THE

          2   TIME.

          3             THERE IS A GENTLEMAN WHO WILL BE UP AFTER ME, BRAD

          4   CHASE, WHO I'M SURE IS THOROUGHLY PREPARED TO DISCUSS AOL IN

          5   DETAIL.  THIS REALLY ISN'T MY AREA OF EXPERTISE.  I COULD

          6   LOOK AT THESE NUMBERS AND TRY AND SPECULATE, BUT I DON'T

          7   THINK THAT THAT'S FAIR TO THE COURT.

          8   Q.  MR. MYHRVOLD, I UNDERSTAND THAT YOU WOULD LIKE ME TO ASK

          9   THESE QUESTIONS OF MR. CHASE, AND I ASSURE YOU THAT I WILL.

         10   ON THE OTHER HAND, I GET TO ASK THESE QUESTIONS OF ANY

         11   MICROSOFT WITNESS THAT COMES, PARTICULARLY A MICROSOFT

         12   WITNESS WHOSE NAME APPEARS ON THESE DOCUMENTS.

         13             IF YOU DON'T KNOW ANYTHING ABOUT IT -- IF THAT'S

         14   YOUR TESTIMONY -- OR IF IT IS THAT YOU DON'T REMEMBER

         15   ANYTHING ABOUT IT -- IF THAT'S YOUR TESTIMONY -- YOU CAN

         16   TELL ME.  BUT WHAT I'M TRYING TO DO IS TO FIND OUT WHAT YOU

         17   KNOW, IF ANYTHING, AT THE PRESENT TIME ABOUT THESE DOCUMENTS

         18   THAT WERE SENT EITHER BY YOU OR TO YOU IN THE ORDINARY

         19   COURSE OF BUSINESS.

         20             LET ME ASK IT THIS WAY.  WERE YOU AWARE IN 1997 OR

         21   1998 THAT AOL WAS, AS IS DESCRIBED IN THESE DOCUMENTS,

         22   FORCE-FEEDING THE INTERNET EXPLORER BROWSER TO AOL'S

         23   INSTALLED BASE?

         24   A.  I'M NOT SURE I'D PUT IT THAT WAY.  I WAS CERTAINLY

         25   AWARE, MR. BOIES, THAT THEY WERE DEVELOPING THEIR CLIENT FOR

                                                                              16

          1   THE AOL SERVICE ON TOP OF INTERNET EXPLORER.  AND I ALSO

          2   KNOW THAT THEY WERE ENCOURAGING THEIR EXISTING USERS TO

          3   UPGRADE TO THAT NEW SOFTWARE.

          4             I DO NOT KNOW WHAT ABILITY AOL HAS TO DICTATE

          5   WHICH BROWSER THEIR USERS USE.  I BELIEVE THAT THEIR USERS

          6   ARE PERFECTLY ABLE TO USE OTHER BROWSERS FOR BROWSING THE

          7   INTERNET, IF THEY SO WISH.  BUT, AGAIN, I'M NOT AN EXPERT IN

          8   THIS AREA AND I WOULD DEFER TO MR. CHASE.

          9   Q.  DID PEOPLE TELL YOU THAT AOL WAS FORCE-FEEDING THE IE

         10   BROWSER, IN THOSE WORDS?

         11   A.  I THINK -- AS FAR AS I REMEMBER, THIS IS THE ONLY PIECE

         12   OF E-MAIL THAT I RECEIVED THAT USED THAT WORD,

         13   "FORCE-FED" -- THAT TERM, "FORCE FED."  NOW, I COULD BE

         14   WRONG, BUT I THINK THAT THIS IS THE ONLY EXAMPLE.

         15   Q.  DID YOU ASK THE AUTHOR OF THIS WHAT HE MEANT BY THAT?

         16   A.  NO, SIR, I DID NOT.

         17   Q.  THIS IS DATED DECEMBER OF 1997.  LET ME SHOW YOU A

         18   DOCUMENT THAT IS ALREADY ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE THAT IS

         19   GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 814A THAT IS THE FOLLOWING MONTH.

         20             THIS IS A DOCUMENT THAT YOU WERE NOT SHOWN AS

         21   HAVING A COPY -- OF RECEIVING A COPY, NOR IS MR. CHASE.  THE

         22   PORTION THAT I AM PARTICULARLY INTERESTED IS AT THE TOP OF

         23   THE PAGE --

         24   A.  THE FIRST PAGE, SIR?

         25   Q.  YES.
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          1   A.  OKAY.

          2   Q.  -- WHERE IT SAYS, QUOTE, "YOU ARE CORRECT.  THE TYPICAL

          3   AOL USER IS AN INTERNET NOVICE.  THESE USERS, AS SOON AS

          4   THEY ATTEMPT TO LOG OFF THE AOL SERVER, WILL DETERMINE IF

          5   THEY HAVE THE LATEST VERSIONS OF THE CLIENT, BROWSER AND ANY

          6   PATCHES.  IF THE USER DOES NOT HAVE THE LATEST VERSION, THE

          7   SYSTEM WILL AUTOMATICALLY FORCE-FEED THE UPGRADE.  JOE

          8   PETERSON IN CHRIS JONES' GROUP UNDERSTANDS THIS PROCESS AND

          9   HAS BEEN EXPLORING FACILITATING UPGRADES THROUGH PHONE

         10   WIRES."

         11             NOW, I TAKE IT IT IS YOUR TESTIMONY THAT YOU NEVER

         12   SAW THIS DOCUMENT WHICH IS NOT ADDRESSED TO YOU?

         13   A.  NO.  I DON'T BELIEVE I'VE EVER SEEN THIS BEFORE.

         14   Q.  DID ANYONE CONVEY TO YOU THE SUBSTANCE OF WHAT IS HERE?

         15   A.  NO.  ALTHOUGH, AS I SAID EARLIER, I WAS CERTAINLY AWARE

         16   THAT AOL WAS BUILDING THEIR CLIENT ON TOP OF INTERNET

         17   EXPLORER, AND THAT THEY WOULD BE INTRODUCING THAT TO THEIR

         18   USERS, INCLUDING GETTING THEIR EXISTING USERS TO UPGRADE.

         19             I DID NOT KNOW HOW EXACTLY THAT WOULD WORK.  THIS

         20   SEEMS TO EXPLAIN IT IN MORE DETAIL.

         21   Q.  DID YOU KNOW AT THE TIME THAT REGARDLESS OF HOW THEY DID

         22   IT, THAT IT WAS WORKING -- THAT IS, THAT AOL WAS SUCCEEDING

         23   IN CONVERTING ITS INSTALLED BASE TO IE?

         24   A.  I CERTAINLY KNEW THAT THE SHARE OF INTERNET EXPLORER

         25   WITH AOL USERS WAS RISING.  I DON'T KNOW IF I KNEW WHETHER
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          1   THAT WAS BASED ON NEW GROWTH OR EXISTING USER CONVERSION,

          2   BUT I CERTAINLY KNEW IT WAS RISING.

          3   Q.  NOW, YOU SAID THAT YOU DIDN'T HAVE RESPONSIBILITY FOR

          4   AOL.  DID YOU HAVE RESPONSIBILITY FOR AT&T?

          5   A.  AT VARIOUS TIMES, YES.  I WAS INVOLVED IN THE

          6   NEGOTIATION OF THE AT&T CONTRACT FOR THE REFERRAL SERVER,

          7   BUT I WAS ONLY PARTLY INVOLVED.  THAT WAS PRIMARILY

          8   NEGOTIATED BY BRAD SILVERBERG AND, I THINK, BRAD CHASE.

          9   Q.  NOW, AT&T WAS IN THE REFERRAL SERVER, YOU SAID.  AT&T

         10   WAS ALSO IN THE ONLINE SERVICES FOLDER, CORRECT?

         11   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

         12   Q.  AND WITH RESPECT TO THE ONLINE SERVICES FOLDER, WAS AT&T

         13   TOLD THAT IF THEY WANTED TO BE IN THE WINDOWS BOX IN

         14   CONNECTION WITH THE ONLINE SERVICES FOLDER, THAT AT&T WOULD

         15   HAVE TO GIVE EXCLUSIVE OR VERY, VERY PREFERENTIAL TREATMENT

         16   TO MICROSOFT'S BROWSER?

         17   A.  CERTAINLY NOT EXCLUSIVE.  THEY MAY WELL HAVE BEEN TOLD

         18   THEY HAD TO GIVE PREFERENTIAL PROMOTION AND DISTRIBUTION TO

         19   MICROSOFT'S BROWSER.

         20   Q.  AND WERE THEY TOLD THAT IF THEY WANTED TO BE IN WINDOWS,

         21   THAT PARITY WAS NOT AN OPTION -- THAT IS, THAT THEY COULD

         22   NOT TREATY IE AND NAVIGATOR EQUALLY?

         23   A.  I DO NOT KNOW.

         24   Q.  LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 183, WHICH

         25   IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.
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          1             AND THE PORTION THAT I AM PARTICULARLY INTERESTED

          2   IN AT THIS TIME IS AT THE TOP OF THE FIRST PAGE WHERE THERE

          3   IS AN E-MAIL FROM MR. SILVERBERG TO YOU AND A NUMBER OF

          4   OTHER PEOPLE.  DO YOU SEE THAT?

          5   A.  YES, SIR.  I DO.

          6   Q.  AND MR. SILVERBERG IS REPORTING ON A MEETING AT AT&T ON

          7   MARCH 13, 1996, CORRECT?

          8   A.  I THINK HE IS ACTUALLY REPLYING TO A REPORT OF A

          9   MEETING.  I BELIEVE BRAD PROBABLY CALLED TOM ON THE PHONE.

         10   Q.  YOU BELIEVE THAT MR. SILVERBERG CALLED WHO ON THE PHONE?

         11   A.  TOM EVSLIN, THE GENTLEMAN HE MENTIONS IN THE FIRST

         12   SENTENCE.

         13   Q.  AND WHO IS MR. EVSLIN?

         14   A.  HE'S A FORMER MICROSOFT EXECUTIVE WHO WENT TO AT&T AND

         15   WAS VICE-PRESIDENT OF THEIR WORLDNET SERVICE, WHICH IS THEIR

         16   ISP SERVICE.

         17   Q.  SO THIS E-MAIL FROM MR. SILVERBERG TO YOU AND OTHERS,

         18   DATED MARCH 15, 1996, IS A REPORT OF A CONVERSATION BETWEEN

         19   MR. SILVERBERG AND THE VICE-PRESIDENT OF AT&T'S ISP

         20   OPERATION; IS THAT CORRECT?

         21   A.  YES, I THINK SO.

         22   Q.  AND MR. SILVERBERG REPORTS HERE THAT, "TOM EVSLIN HAS

         23   TOLD ME, (A) HE WANTS TO TALK ABOUT IE SEPARATELY FROM MSN,

         24   AND (B) HE VERY BADLY WANTS IN THE WINDOWS BOX.  I HAVE TOLD

         25   HIM THAT THE ONLY WAY WE CAN EVEN CONSIDER AT&T BEING IN THE
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          1   WINDOWS BOX IS IF AT&T GIVES IE EXCLUSIVE OR VERY, VERY

          2   PREFERENTIAL TREATMENT (A LA WHAT WE HAVE WITH AOL.)  PARITY

          3   IS COMPLETELY UNACCEPTABLE FOR THEM TO BE IN THE BOX."

          4             DO YOU SEE THAT?

          5   A.  YES, I DO.

          6   Q.  DOES THIS REFRESH YOUR RECOLLECTION THAT YOU WERE TOLD

          7   IN 1996 THAT AT&T HAD BEEN INFORMED THAT THEY COULD NOT BE

          8   IN THE WINDOWS BOX OR IN WINDOWS IF THEY GAVE EQUAL

          9   TREATMENT TO NETSCAPE'S NAVIGATOR?

         10   A.  YES, SIR, IT DOES.  I WOULD ALSO POINT OUT THAT THE AT&T

         11   AGREEMENT I DON'T BELIEVE WAS SIGNED UNTIL MID-SUMMER.  SO

         12   THERE CERTAINLY WAS NEGOTIATING TIME ON EACH SIDE BETWEEN

         13   THE SENDING OF THIS E-MAIL AND THE SIGNING OF THE CONTRACT.

         14   Q.  BUT WHEN THE CONTRACT WAS SIGNED, AT&T MADE THE SAME 85

         15   PERCENT COMMITMENT THAT AOL HAD MADE, CORRECT, SIR?

         16   A.  I BELIEVE THAT IS CORRECT.

         17   Q.  AND MR. SILVERBERG GOES ON TO SAY THAT HE TOLD

         18   MR. EVSLIN THAT IT WAS COMPLETELY NON-NEGOTIABLE, CORRECT,

         19   SIR?

         20   A.  YES.

         21   Q.  AND THAT THE PARITY OPTION MEANS NO WINDOWS BOX FOR

         22   AT&T, CORRECT, SIR?

         23   A.  THAT'S WHAT HE WRITES HERE IN THIS E-MAIL.

         24   Q.  AND YOU HAVE NO REASON TO DOUBT THAT MR. SILVERBERG IS

         25   HONESTLY AND ACCURATELY REPORTING HIS CONVERSATION WITH
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          1   MR. EVSLIN, CORRECT?

          2   A.  NO, I HAVE NO DOUBT THAT THIS WAS A CONVERSATION THEY

          3   HAD AT THAT TIME.

          4   Q.  OKAY.  LET ME TURN TO ANOTHER ISP, AND THIS IS ONE THAT

          5   YOU MENTIONED IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY.  AND IT IS AN ISP, I

          6   BELIEVE, IN THE UNITED KINGDOM CALLED UUNET PIPEX,

          7   P-I-P-E-X?

          8   A.  YES.  I BELIEVE IT'S PRONOUNCED PIPEX.

          9   Q.  PIPEX.

         10             NOW, IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY, YOU REFER TO

         11   MR. BARKSDALE'S CLAIM THAT MICROSOFT HAD OFFERED MONEY,

         12   400,000 OR $500,000, TO A ISP IN EUROPE TO SWITCH FROM

         13   NETSCAPE TO INTERNET EXPLORER, CORRECT?

         14   A.  YES.  I BELIEVE THAT MR. BARKSDALE MADE THE CLAIM THAT

         15   WE OFFERED MANY SUCH ISP'S IN IRELAND AND THE UK, IF I

         16   REMEMBER HIS PHRASEOLOGY CORRECTLY, MONEY TO SHIP INTERNET

         17   EXPLORER.

         18   Q.  AND YOU SAID THAT'S NOT TRUE AND YOU SAID THAT YOU DID

         19   AGREE TO PAY $500,000 TO PIPEX, BUT THAT WAS IN ORDER TO GET

         20   PIPEX TO DO WEB HOSTING FOR YOU, NOT TO SWITCH FROM

         21   NETSCAPE'S BROWSER, CORRECT, SIR?

         22   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

         23   Q.  NOW, IN THAT CONNECTION, I WOULD LIKE TO ASK YOU TO LOOK

         24   AT A COUPLE OF DOCUMENTS.  FIRST, I'D LIKE YOU TO LOOK AT A

         25   DOCUMENT THAT HAS PREVIOUSLY BEEN MARKED AS GOVERNMENT'S

                                                                              22

          1   EXHIBIT 1812.

          2             MR. BOIES:  AND I WOULD OFFER GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT

          3   1812, YOUR HONOR.

          4             MR. HOLLEY:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

          5             THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 1812 IS ADMITTED.

          6                                   (WHEREUPON, PLAINTIFFS'

          7                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 1812 WAS

          8                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)

          9   BY MR. BOIES:

         10   Q.  I AM INTERESTED IN YOUR E-MAIL AT THE TOP OF THE FIRST

         11   PAGE OF THIS EXHIBIT.  IT'S DATED JULY 9, 1996 AT 8:16 A.M.

         12   DO YOU SEE THAT?

         13   A.  YES, I DO.

         14   Q.  AND THIS IS ON THE SUBJECT OF A UUNET PIPEX DEAL FOR

         15   EUROPE; IS THAT CORRECT?

         16   A.  YES.

         17   Q.  AND YOU DESIGNATE THE IMPORTANCE AS HIGH, CORRECT, SIR?

         18   A.  YES.  QUITE TYPICALLY, SINCE GEORGES NAHON WAS LOCATED

         19   IN PARIS, I WOULD TRY AND GET INTO THE OFFICE EARLY AND SEND

         20   A PIECE OF E-MAIL SO THAT WE COULD DISCUSS IT ON THE PHONE

         21   BEFORE HE WENT HOME TONIGHT -- THAT SAME NIGHT IN PARIS.

         22             SO PROBABLY I PUT ON THE IMPORTANCE OF HIGH JUST

         23   TO BE SURE HE MIGHT READ IT BEFORE HE HAD A CHANCE TO GO

         24   HOME.

         25   Q.  NOW, WHEN YOU COMMUNICATED WITH MR. -- HOW DO YOU
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          1   PRONOUNCE HIS NAME?

          2   A.  NAHON.

          3   Q.  NAHON.  GENERALLY, DID YOU PUT IN "IMPORTANCE HIGH"?

          4   A.  IF IT WAS SOMETHING THAT I WANTED HIM TO READ BEFORE HE

          5   LEFT THE OFFICE, I WOULD DO THAT.

          6   Q.  OKAY.  AND YOU WANTED HIM TO READ THIS BEFORE HE LEFT

          7   THE OFFICE, CORRECT?

          8   A.  YES.  IT APPEARS SO.

          9   Q.  AND WHAT YOU SAY AT THE BEGINNING IS THAT YOU ARE

         10   SENDING HIM AN E-MAIL FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF

         11   UUNET, QUOTE, "ABOUT WHAT IT WOULD TAKE TO GET PIPEX OFF OF

         12   NETSCAPE."

         13             DO YOU SEE THAT?

         14   A.  YES, I DO.

         15   Q.  AND YOU TELL MR. NAHON THAT YOU HAD PROPOSED GIVING

         16   UUNET $500,000 IN CASH, A REDUCED BOUNTY, AND ALSO SOME MCS

         17   HOURS IN THE UK TO GET HIS PEOPLE UP TO SPEED ON NT, BUT

         18   THAT YOU WERE DOUBTFUL WHETHER HE WOULD ACCEPT YOUR

         19   COUNTEROFFER, CORRECT?

         20   A.  YES.  THAT'S WHAT THE E-MAIL SAYS.

         21   Q.  AND WHAT MR. SIDGMORE, THE C.E.O. OF UUNET, HAD PROPOSED

         22   IS THAT IF YOU WOULD PAY $3.3 MILLION, AND PUT THEM ON THE

         23   ISP REFERRAL SERVERS AT A REDUCED BOUNTY RATE, AND HELP HIS

         24   PEOPLE GET TRAINED, HE WOULD, IN RETURN, TAKE PIPEX OFF OF

         25   NETSCAPE AND USE INTERNET EXPLORER, CORRECT?
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          1   A.  I THINK THAT IS THE GENERAL GIST, YES.

          2   Q.  AND WHAT YOU WERE SAYING IS THAT YOU WOULD GO FOR A

          3   REDUCED BOUNTY AND YOU WOULD GIVE HIM THE TRAINING HOURS,

          4   BUT YOU WERE PROPOSING $500,000 IN CASH INSTEAD OF $3.3

          5   MILLION, CORRECT?

          6   A.  WELL, THIS IS AN E-MAIL.  THAT IS WHAT THE E-MAIL SAYS.

          7   I'D LIKE TO PUT THIS IN CONTEXT.  AND WE WERE WORKING WITH

          8   UUNET PIPEX IN THE UK.  THEY MADE A PROPOSAL TO US THAT

          9   SAID, "GOSH, WE COULD ADOPT INTERNET EXPLORER, BUT WE HAVE A

         10   BIG NETSCAPE DISTRIBUTION BUSINESS, AND THIS IS WHAT WE'D

         11   LIKE YOU TO DO."  SO I AM DISCUSSING THAT WITH GEORGES.

         12             I BELIEVE IT WAS SOME TIME -- I THINK IT WAS A

         13   COUPLE OF MONTHS AT LEAST -- BEFORE WE EVER SIGNED THIS

         14   DEAL, AND THAT IS NOT HOW IT ENDED UP.  IT ENDED UP THAT WE

         15   PUT THEM ON THE REFERRAL SERVER.  WE GAVE THEM A REDUCED

         16   BOUNTY.  AND THEN WE GAVE THEM HALF A MILLION DOLLARS AND

         17   MCS CONSULTING TO GET THEM UP TO SPEED ON WINDOWS NT SO THEY

         18   COULD START A NEW LINE OF BUSINESS, A NEW DIVISION OF THEIR

         19   COMPANY THAT WOULD PURSUE COMMERCIAL WEB HOSTING BASED ON

         20   NT, AND THAT WAS A VERY IMPORTANT GOAL FOR US AT THE TIME IN

         21   THE UK.

         22   Q.  LET ME BE SURE I UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING.  THE

         23   TRAINING TO GET HIS PEOPLE UP TO SPEED ON NT WAS SOMETHING

         24   THAT WAS TALKED ABOUT IN YOUR JULY 9, 1996 E-MAIL, CORRECT?

         25   A.  CORRECT.
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          1   Q.  SO THAT WASN'T SOMETHING THAT WAS NEW THAT CAME UP

          2   LATER.  THAT WAS SOMETHING THAT WAS TALKED ABOUT ON JULY 9.

          3   THEY ASKED FOR IT, AND YOU SAID YOU'D GIVE IT TO THEM,

          4   RIGHT?

          5   A.  YES.  WHAT WAS NEW, SUBSEQUENT TO THIS E-MAIL EXCHANGE,

          6   WAS THE IDEA THAT THEY'D ACTUALLY START A NEW BUSINESS

          7   HOSTING WEB PAGES ON NT, AND THAT WAS IMPORTANT TO US

          8   BECAUSE WE HAD NO OTHER COMPANY IN THE UK AT THAT TIME

          9   HOSTING WEB PAGES ON NT.

         10             THERE WAS A COMPANY IN THE UK CALLED DEMON

         11   INTERNET.  THEY HOSTED A HUGE PERCENTAGE OF ALL EUROPEAN WEB

         12   PAGES AT THIS TIME.  LITERALLY SOMETHING LIKE 15 PERCENT OF

         13   ALL WEB PAGES IN ALL OF EUROPE -- NOT JUST THE UK -- WERE

         14   HOSTED BY DEMON INTERNET, AND WE COULD MAKE NO PROGRESS WITH

         15   THEM ON NT.

         16             SO WE THOUGHT A GOOD STRATEGY WOULD BE TO GO TO

         17   ONE OF THEIR COMPETITORS, PIPEX, AND GET THEM TO REALLY BE

         18   AGGRESSIVE IN PURSUING THE WEB HOSTING BUSINESS ON NT.  AND

         19   THAT'S HOW THE DEAL ACTUALLY ENDED UP BEING DONE.

         20   Q.  LET ME ASK YOU TO FOCUS ON MY QUESTION, SIR.  ON JULY 9,

         21   1996, BEFORE YOU SAY THERE WAS THIS LATER DEVELOPMENT, YOU

         22   HAD ALREADY OFFERED HIM $500,000 IN CASH AS PART OF THE

         23   CONSIDERATION TO GET HIM TO TAKE PIPEX OFF OF NETSCAPE AND

         24   SWITCH TO NAVIGATOR, CORRECT?

         25   A.  CORRECT.
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          1   Q.  AND YOU ULTIMATELY ENDED UP PAYING THEM $500,000 IN

          2   CASH, CORRECT?

          3   A.  THAT IS CORRECT, AND THEY MADE CONSIDERABLE PROMISES TO

          4   US AND CONTRACTUAL TERMS TO US THAT THEY WOULD START A NEW

          5   LINE OF BUSINESS HOSTING WEB PAGES ON WINDOWS NT.

          6   Q.  BUT STARTING A NEW BUSINESS OF HOSTING WEB PAGES ON NT

          7   WAS NOT A REQUIREMENT OF YOURS WHEN YOU OFFERED THEM THE

          8   $500,000 CASH IN JULY OF 1996, CORRECT, SIR?

          9   A.  THEM STARTING A SEPARATE BUSINESS UNIT TO PURSUE NT WAS

         10   NOT A CONSIDERATION IN THIS E-MAIL, THAT'S CORRECT.

         11   Q.  AND, INDEED, ALTHOUGH YOU DIDN'T DO IT FORMALLY IN THE

         12   CONTRACT, YOU ULTIMATELY TIED THE PAYMENT OF THAT $500,000

         13   TO THEIR ACTUALLY SHIPPING IE, CORRECT, SIR?

         14   A.  NO, I DO NOT BELIEVE THAT IS THE CASE.

         15   Q.  LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 102, WHICH

         16   IS ALREADY ADMITTED IN EVIDENCE.  AND THE E-MAIL AT THE TOP

         17   IS FROM YOU, DATED DECEMBER 16, 1996, CORRECT, SIR?

         18   A.  YES.

         19   Q.  AND IT IS RESPONDING TO AN EARLIER E-MAIL IN WHICH THERE

         20   IS DISCUSSION OF UUNET PIPEX ASKING FOR ITS $500,000; IS

         21   THAT CORRECT?

         22   A.  YES.

         23   Q.  AND YOU WRITE, QUOTE, "I ACTUALLY THINK TYING THE

         24   PAYMENT TO THEIR SHIPPING IE IS A GREAT IDEA, THOUGH I WOULD

         25   NOT DO THIS FORMALLY."  CORRECT, SIR?
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          1   A.  YES.  THAT IS WHAT I WRITE.

          2   Q.  AND THIS WAS ACTUALLY SENT, CORRECT, SIR?

          3   A.  YES, IT WAS ACTUALLY SENT.

          4   Q.  LET ME TURN TO THE WINDOWS REFERRAL SERVER.  FIRST, YOU

          5   SAY IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY THAT MICROSOFT HAD DEVELOPED

          6   AND IMPLEMENTED THE REFERRAL SERVER AT SIGNIFICANT COST AND

          7   EXPENSE; IS THAT CORRECT, SIR?

          8   A.  YES.  WE CERTAINLY HAD TO UNDERTAKE DEVELOPMENT WORK.

          9   WE HAD TO LEASE A WORLDWIDE NETWORK SINCE IT WAS A WORLDWIDE

         10   PROGRAM.  THERE WAS EXPENSE RELATED TO THAT.

         11   Q.  AND YOU DESCRIBE THAT EXPENSE, AMONG OTHER PLACES, IN

         12   PARAGRAPH 49 OF YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY, AND YOU SAY THERE

         13   THAT MICROSOFT MADE A CONSIDERABLE INVESTMENT IN ORDER TO

         14   ESTABLISH THE WINDOWS REFERRAL SERVER, CORRECT, SIR?

         15   A.  YES, I BELIEVE I DO.  I'M NOT THERE IN THE TESTIMONY,

         16   BUT --

         17   Q.  HOW MUCH DID MICROSOFT SPEND ON DEVELOPING AND

         18   IMPLEMENTING THE WINDOWS REFERRAL SERVER?

         19   A.  I DON'T KNOW THE EXACT COST AND I DON'T KNOW OF ANY

         20   TOTAL THAT WAS DEVELOPED ON THAT.  I BELIEVE IT COSTS US

         21   BETWEEN 4 AND $5 MILLION PER YEAR TO LEASE THE NETWORK THAT

         22   THE REFERRAL SERVER RUNS ON.

         23   Q.  OTHER THAN THE AMOUNT OF MONEY THAT IT COSTS YOU PER

         24   YEAR TO LEASE THE LINES -- THE NETWORK LINES THAT IT RUNS

         25   ON -- DO YOU HAVE ANY ESTIMATE OF THE COST OF DEVELOPING THE
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          1   INTERNET REFERRAL SERVER, OR MARKETING IT, OR OTHERWISE

          2   IMPLEMENTING IT?

          3   A.  NO, SIR.  I DON'T.  WE HAD TO DEVELOP THE SOFTWARE.  WE

          4   HAVE TO MAINTAIN THE SERVERS.  WE HAVE TO MAINTAIN THEM UP

          5   AND RUNNING 24 HOURS A DAY, BUT I DO NOT KNOW WHAT THAT

          6   COSTS.

          7   Q.  DO YOU HAVE ANY ESTIMATE OF THAT COST?

          8   A.  NO, SIR, I DO NOT.

          9   Q.  COULD YOU GIVE ME A RANGE?

         10   A.  NO, I'M NOT SURE I COULD.

         11   Q.  I WANT TO BE SURE THAT THAT ANSWER IS JUST A DIFFERENCE

         12   IN WORDING OR PHRASEOLOGY.  WHEN YOU SAY YOU'RE NOT SURE YOU

         13   COULD, IF YOU CAN, I WANT YOU TO GIVE IT TO ME.  IF WHAT

         14   YOU'RE TELLING ME IS THAT YOU CAN'T GIVE ME A RANGE, I

         15   ACCEPT THAT, BUT I WANT TO BE SURE THAT YOU'VE GIVEN ME A

         16   RANGE, IF YOU COULD POSSIBLY DO SO.

         17   A.  I DO NOT KNOW WHAT IT COSTS.  IT WOULD BE DIFFICULT FOR

         18   ME TO ESTIMATE.  I DON'T KNOW WHAT IT COSTS US TO MAINTAIN

         19   SERVERS.  I DON'T KNOW HOW MANY LINES OF CODE WENT INTO THE

         20   DEVELOPMENT OF ICW.  SO IT IS NOT SOMETHING I THINK I COULD

         21   DETERMINE HERE.

         22   Q.  COULD YOU GIVE ME A RANGE, THOUGH, AS YOU SIT HERE?  IF

         23   YOU CAN'T, I ACCEPT THAT.

         24   A.  NO, SIR, I DON'T THINK I CAN.

         25   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, YOU BELIEVED THAT THE INCLUSION OF THE
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          1   INTERNET REFERRAL SERVER IN WINDOWS WAS GOING TO BE A

          2   MECHANISM IN ORDER TO INDUCE ISP'S TO LICENSE AND DISTRIBUTE

          3   INTERNET EXPLORER, CORRECT?

          4   A.  WE CERTAINLY THOUGHT IT WOULD BE AN ATTRACTIVE MARKETING

          5   PROGRAM AND WOULD ALLOW US TO OFFER SOMETHING TO ISP'S THAT

          6   WOULD CAUSE THEM TO CONSIDER DISTRIBUTING OUR BROWSER MORE

          7   SERIOUSLY THAN THEY WERE AT THE PRESENT TIME -- AT THAT

          8   TIME.

          9   Q.  I WANT TO BE SURE THE ANSWER AND THE QUESTION ARE

         10   MEETING, SIR.

         11   A.  OKAY.

         12   Q.  AND MAYBE THE BEST WAY TO DO THAT IS TO SHOW YOU PAGE 65

         13   OF YOUR DEPOSITION TAKEN ON APRIL 24, 1998.  AND AS ALWAYS,

         14   YOU CAN LOOK AT WHATEVER PORTION YOU WISH FOR CONTEXT, BUT I

         15   AM PARTICULARLY INTERESTED IN THE TESTIMONY AT LINES 9

         16   THROUGH 20 OF PAGE 65.

         17   A.  PAGE 65.  LINES 9 THROUGH 20?

         18   Q.  YES.

         19             "QUESTION:  AND SO WAS THE INCLUSION OF THE

         20   INTERNET CONNECTION WIZARD AND THE INTERNET REFERRAL SERVER

         21   ONE MECHANISM THROUGH WHICH MICROSOFT WOULD INDUCE ISP'S TO

         22   LICENSE AND DISTRIBUTE INTERNET EXPLORER?

         23             "ANSWER:  YES.

         24             "QUESTION:  WAS THIS A CONSIDERATION IN ASSESSING,

         25   IF YOU RECALL, WHETHER TO HAVE AN INTERNET CONNECTION WIZARD
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          1   IN WINDOWS?

          2             "ANSWER:  IT COULD WELL HAVE BEEN.

          3             "QUESTION:  DO YOU RECALL IF IT WAS?

          4             "ANSWER:  PROBABLY."

          5             NOW, I TAKE IT YOU ACCEPT THAT YOU WERE ASKED

          6   THOSE QUESTIONS AND GAVE THOSE ANSWERS AT YOUR DEPOSITION;

          7   IS THAT CORRECT?

          8   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

          9   Q.  AND DO YOU STILL BELIEVE THAT THOSE ARE CORRECT ANSWERS

         10   TO THOSE QUESTIONS?

         11   A.  YES, I DO.

         12   Q.  AND DO YOU ALSO STILL BELIEVE THAT THE INTERNET

         13   CONNECTION WIZARD WAS, AS YOU DESCRIBE IT IN THIS

         14   DEPOSITION, OF "GREAT VALUE TO ISP'S"?

         15   A.  I THINK IT IS CERTAINLY VALUABLE TO ISP'S.  I DON'T KNOW

         16   IF I'D SAY GREAT VALUE TO ISP'S.  THERE ARE A NUMBER OF

         17   ISP'S WHO HAVE BEEN IN THE PROGRAM FOR A LONG TIME.  THEY

         18   CONTINUE TO BE IN IT.  I ASSUME THAT THAT'S BECAUSE THEY

         19   FIND IT'S VALUABLE.

         20             THERE IS ONE ISP, GTE, WHO HAS SIGNED THE

         21   AGREEMENT AND NEVER BOTHERED TO IMPLEMENT THE PROGRAM.  SO I

         22   CAN'T IMAGINE GTE FINDS IT OF GREAT VALUE TO BE PART OF IT.

         23   Q.  IN YOUR DEPOSITION ON APRIL 24, 1998, YOU DESCRIBED THE

         24   INTERNET CONNECTION WIZARD IN WINDOWS TO BE, "A GREAT VALUE

         25   TO ISP'S."  DID YOU NOT, SIR?
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          1   A.  YES, I DO.  I DON'T QUITE SEE WHERE THAT IS.  COULD YOU

          2   DIRECT ME?

          3   Q.  SURE.  IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE PORTION THAT I READ.

          4   A.  OH, I SEE IT.  OKAY.

          5             YES, I THINK IN THIS CONTEXT IT CERTAINLY

          6   REPRESENTS A GOOD VALUE TO ISP'S SINCE IT IS A CHEAPER WAY

          7   OF ACQUIRING CUSTOMERS THAN THE INDUSTRY AVERAGE OF

          8   ACQUIRING CUSTOMERS.  SO I WOULD SAY FOR MOST ISP'S IT IS A

          9   GOOD VALUE, YES.

         10   Q.  AND THE REFERRAL SERVER WAS PARTLY CREATED IN ORDER TO

         11   INDUCE ISP'S TO COMMIT TO INTERNET EXPLORER ON A PREFERRED

         12   BASIS, CORRECT, SIR?

         13   A.  YES.  AS PART OF THE CO-MARKETING PROGRAM THAT WE

         14   OFFERED THEM, WE GAVE THEM PAYING CUSTOMERS.  IN RETURN,

         15   THEY AGREED TO PROMOTE AND DISTRIBUTE OUR BROWSER.

         16   Q.  THAT IS, YOU GAVE THEM CUSTOMERS FOR THEIR BUSINESS BY

         17   ALLOWING THEM INTO THE REFERRAL SERVER.  AND THEY, IN

         18   RETURN, AGREED TO PROMOTE YOUR BROWSER ON A PREFERRED BASIS

         19   COMPARED TO NETSCAPE, CORRECT?

         20   A.  YES.  YES.  IN COMPARISON SPECIFICALLY WITH

         21   NON-MIRCOSOFT BROWSERS, BUT CERTAINLY NETSCAPE IS A

         22   NON-MIRCOSOFT BROWSER.

         23   Q.  AND, INDEED, NETSCAPE WAS THE NON-MIRCOSOFT BROWSER WITH

         24   WHICH YOU WERE PRIMARILY CONCERNED, CORRECT, SIR?

         25   A.  SURE.  THEY WERE THE MARKET LEADER.
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          1   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, LET ME GO TO THE SECOND THING THAT I WANT TO

          2   FOLLOW UP FROM YESTERDAY.  AND IN THAT CONNECTION, MAYBE THE

          3   EASIEST WAY TO START IS TO ASK YOU TO LOOK AT PAGE 43 OF

          4   YOUR DEPOSITION WHICH YOU HAVE IN FRONT OF YOU.  AND I

          5   REFERENCED THIS ANSWER YESTERDAY, AND THIS IS IN THE CONTEXT

          6   OF ASKING YOU ABOUT VARIOUS DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS FOR

          7   BROWSERS.  AND AT LINES 14 THROUGH 18, YOU ARE ASKED:

          8             "QUESTION:  COULD YOU DESCRIBE THE RELATIVE

          9   IMPORTANCE OF EACH CHANNEL, IF YOU KNOW?

         10             "ANSWER:  I BELIEVE THAT THE ISP CHANNEL AND THE

         11   OEM CHANNEL ARE THE TWO MOST IMPORTANT CHANNELS FOR

         12   DISTRIBUTION."

         13             DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

         14   A.  YES, I DO.

         15   Q.  AND I TAKE IT YOU BELIEVE THAT THAT WAS ACCURATE IN

         16   APRIL OF 1998, CORRECT?

         17   A.  YES, I DID.  I AM ALSO SPEAKING TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF

         18   INTERNET EXPLORER, AND I GO ON TO EXPLAIN THAT PART OF THE

         19   REASON I SAY THAT IS BECAUSE WE WERE NOT DOING A VERY GOOD

         20   JOB IN THE RETAIL CHANNEL.  SO I SEEM TO BE ANSWERING THAT

         21   SPECIFICALLY WITH REGARD TO MICROSOFT.

         22   Q.  AND DO YOU STILL BELIEVE THAT IT IS TRUE THAT THE ISP

         23   CHANNEL AND THE OEM CHANNEL ARE THE TWO MOST IMPORTANT

         24   CHANNELS FOR DISTRIBUTION, AS YOU SAY HERE?

         25   A.  THAT'S LESS CLEAR TO ME, SIR.  THEY MAY BE, BUT THAT IS
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          1   DEFINITELY LESS CLEAR TO ME.

          2   Q.  NOW, YOU SAY THAT THIS RELATES TO INTERNET EXPLORER.

          3   LET ME CONTINUE IN YOUR DEPOSITION FOR A MINUTE.  FOLLOWING

          4   YOUR ANSWER IN WHICH YOU SAY "I BELIEVE THAT THE ISP CHANNEL

          5   AND THE OEM CHANNEL ARE THE TWO MOST IMPORTANT CHANNELS FOR

          6   DISTRIBUTION," YOU ARE ASKED:

          7             "QUESTION:  WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR THAT BELIEF?

          8             "ANSWER:  TWO THINGS.  ONE, OUR CONTINUED

          9   DISADVANTAGE IN THE RETAIL CHANNEL.  IN MY OPINION, WE'VE

         10   NOT DONE A VERY GOOD JOB IN THE RETAIL CHANNEL.  NUMBER TWO,

         11   I BELIEVE THAT STUDIES OVERALL SHOW THAT ISP'S ARE AMONG THE

         12   MOST IMPORTANT SOURCE OF DISTRIBUTION FOR BROWSERS.  I THINK

         13   THERE IS INDEPENDENT STUDIES OF THAT."

         14             NOW, IS THAT STILL YOUR VIEW, SIR?

         15   A.  IN THAT PARTICULAR ANSWER, I WAS QUOTING A PIECE OF

         16   E-MAIL THAT I RECEIVED FROM BJORN HOFSTADIUS, WHO WAS A

         17   MEMBER OF THE WINDOWS MARKETING GROUP.  I NEVER ACTUALLY SAW

         18   THE INDEPENDENT STUDY THAT REFLECTED THAT, BUT HE DID CITE

         19   THAT IN THE E-MAIL, SO THAT'S WHY I'M MAKING THAT STATEMENT.

         20   Q.  AND THAT'S WHAT YOU WERE THINKING OF WHEN YOU GAVE THIS

         21   DEPOSITION ANSWER?

         22   A.  YES, SIR.

         23   Q.  WHEN DID YOU GET THAT E-MAIL?

         24   A.  OH, BOY.  I BELIEVE I WOULD HAVE RECEIVED THAT E-MAIL IN

         25   THE EARLY PART -- MARCH, APRIL OR MAY OF '97 BECAUSE I
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          1   BELIEVE IT WAS A DRAFT OF THE WORLDWIDE REGIONAL DIRECTOR'S

          2   MEMO THAT WAS MENTIONED YESTERDAY.  I BELIEVE IT WAS AN

          3   E-MAIL IN CONJUNCTION WITH PREPARATION FOR THAT, AND THAT

          4   WOULD HAVE BEEN ABOUT THE RIGHT TIME.

          5   Q.  AND IT'S YOUR TESTIMONY THAT WHEN YOU WERE GIVING THIS

          6   DEPOSITION A YEAR LATER, YOU HAD THAT PARTICULAR E-MAIL IN

          7   MIND WHEN YOU WERE ANSWERING THIS QUESTION; IS THAT RIGHT?

          8   A.  I THINK SO BECAUSE IN PREPARING FOR THE TRIAL AND GOING

          9   BACK, I DID FIND THAT PIECE OF E-MAIL.  AND I DON'T SEE -- I

         10   DID NOT FIND ANY OTHER REFERENCE OR ANY INDEPENDENT STUDY

         11   THAT I RECEIVED DIRECTLY THAT CONTAINED THIS DATA.

         12   Q.  THAT'S REALLY WHAT I'M TRYING TO ASK YOU, SIR.  THE

         13   REASON THAT YOU THINK OR THE REASON THAT YOU'RE NOW

         14   TESTIFYING THAT THIS WAS DUE TO THIS E-MAIL IN 1997 IS NOT

         15   BECAUSE YOU REMEMBERED IT AT THE TIME, BUT BECAUSE, IN

         16   PREPARING FOR THIS TESTIMONY AT THIS TRIAL, THAT WAS THE

         17   ONLY E-MAIL YOU COULD FIND, CORRECT?

         18   A.  NO.  I THINK THAT DOES JIBE WITH MY MEMORY OF WHY I

         19   ANSWERED THIS QUESTION THIS WAY.  I MEAN, IT WAS -- TEN

         20   MONTHS AGO I GIVE THIS DEPOSITION, SO I COULD BE WRONG.  BUT

         21   NO, SIR, THE TWO ARE NOT COMPLETELY DISCONNECTED.  I'M NOT

         22   GOING BACK AND HAVING NO IDEA WHY I ANSWERED THIS QUESTION

         23   LOOKING FOR A REASON.  I THINK IT WAS BECAUSE OF BJORN'S

         24   E-MAIL.

         25   Q.  NOW, I JUST WANT TO MAKE THIS CLEAR ONE WAY OR THE OTHER
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          1   BECAUSE A LITTLE WHILE AGO YOU TESTIFIED THAT YOU COULDN'T

          2   REMEMBER ANY E-MAILS ABOUT WHAT THE REQUIREMENT WAS FOR

          3   PEOPLE IN THE OLS FOLDER, AND WHAT I'M TRYING TO DO IS PROBE

          4   WHETHER YOU REALLY REMEMBERED AT THIS DEPOSITION THIS

          5   PARTICULAR E-MAIL FROM A YEAR AGO, OR WHETHER THIS IS

          6   SOMETHING THAT YOU THINK YOU WERE BASING IT ON, BASED ON

          7   WHAT YOU REVIEWED IN PREPARATION FOR YOUR TESTIMONY.  WHICH

          8   IS IT, SIR?

          9   A.  WELL, YOU THREW A NUMBER OF THINGS INTO THAT QUESTION.

         10   FIRST OF ALL, I BELIEVE MY TESTIMONY ON THE

         11   ONLINE-SERVICE-FOLDER REQUIREMENTS WAS THAT I CANNOT TELL

         12   YOU DEFINITIVELY WHAT IS IN THE CONTRACTS.  I DO NOT BELIEVE

         13   I EVER SAID I NEVER RECEIVED A PIECE OF E-MAIL SAYING THAT

         14   TO ME.  SO I'D LIKE TO MAKE THAT CLARIFICATION.

         15             THEN, NUMBER TWO, I BELIEVE MY REFERENCE HERE IS

         16   BASED ON BJORN'S E-MAIL.  I DO NOT REMEMBER, NOR HAVE I SEEN

         17   ANYTHING ELSE THAT THAT WOULD BE BASED ON, SO I BELIEVE THAT

         18   IS THE CASE.  AND I BELIEVE THAT IS THE CASE BECAUSE OF WHAT

         19   REMEMBER FROM THIS DEPOSITION, AS WELL AS ANY DATA THAT I

         20   HAVE SEEN.

         21             DOES THAT ANSWER YOUR QUESTION?

         22   Q.  I'M NOT SURE, BUT RATHER THAN SPEND A LOT MORE TIME ON

         23   IT, LET ME JUST TRY TO CLARIFY ONE THING THAT YOU SAID IN

         24   THAT ANSWER, AND THAT IS THAT YOU SAID THAT -- OR YOU

         25   CHARACTERIZED WHAT YOU SAID YESTERDAY AS NOT THAT YOU DIDN'T
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          1   KNOW WHAT THE COMMITMENT WAS, BUT THAT YOU HADN'T SEEN THE

          2   CONTRACT OR DIDN'T REMEMBER WHAT THE CONTRACT SAID

          3   DEFINITIVELY.

          4             IN THAT CONNECTION, I'D LIKE YOU YOU TO LOOK AT

          5   YOUR TESTIMONY FROM YESTERDAY, AND -- ON PAGE 77 AND 78.

          6   AND I HAD JUST ASKED YOU AT THE BOTTOM OF 77, AT LINE 14,

          7   WHAT WE'VE ALREADY GONE OVER.  AND YOU TESTIFIED THAT YOU

          8   BELIEVED, AS OF MAY 2, 1996, THAT THERE WAS AN 85 PERCENT

          9   REQUIREMENT TO BE IN THE ONLINE SERVICES FOLDER, AND THEN I

         10   ASKED:

         11             "QUESTION:  NOW, DO YOU KNOW OF ANY COMPANY THAT

         12   IS IN THE ONLINE SERVICES FOLDER IN THE UNITED STATES THAT

         13   DID NOT MAKE THAT COMMITMENT?

         14             "ANSWER:  I DON'T KNOW WHAT COMMITMENT COMPUSERVE

         15   MADE.  I DON'T KNOW WHAT THE COMMITMENT IS FOR AT&T.

         16   CERTAINLY FOR THE REFERRAL SERVER, THAT IS NOT TRUE.

         17             "QUESTION:  I'M TALKING ABOUT THE ONLINE SERVICES

         18   FOLDER.

         19             "ANSWER:  THEN I GUESS I HAVE TO REPEAT MYSELF.  I

         20   DO NOT KNOW WHAT THE COMMITMENTS ARE THAT COMPUSERVE AND

         21   AT&T MADE FOR THE ONLINE SERVICES FOLDER."

         22             DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

         23   A.  YES, SIR, AND AT NO POINT DO I SAY I NEVER RECEIVED A

         24   PIECE OF E-MAIL THAT WOULD HAVE TOLD ME THAT, WHICH I

         25   THOUGHT WAS WHAT YOU WERE SAYING IN THE QUESTION YOU ASKED
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          1   ME BEFORE WE GOT INTO THE TESTIMONY FROM YESTERDAY.

          2   Q.  MR. MYHRVOLD, YESTERDAY YOU TOLD ME YOU DIDN'T KNOW WHAT

          3   THE COMMITMENTS WERE, AND TODAY YOU HAVE SEEN MEMOS FROM YOU

          4   YOURSELF, OR E-MAILS, IN YOUR LANGUAGE, FROM YOU YOURSELF

          5   THAT SET FORTH WHAT THOSE COMMITMENTS WERE.  YOU AGREE WITH

          6   THAT PART?

          7   A.  I REPORT WHAT THOSE COMMITMENTS ARE, YES.

          8   Q.  AND IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT YOUR EXPLANATION FOR YOUR

          9   TESTIMONY YESTERDAY IS THAT YOU DID NOT REMEMBER SENDING

         10   THOSE E-MAILS?  YOU DIDN'T REMEMBER WHAT WAS IN THEM?

         11   A.  PERHAPS I AM BEING WAY TOO CONCERNED ABOUT ACCURACY IN

         12   DETAIL HERE.  WHAT I HAVE TRIED TO SAY A NUMBER OF TIMES IS

         13   I DID A LOT OF PREPARATION FOR THIS CASE.  I TRIED TO READ

         14   ALL OF THE CONTRACTS FOR THE REFERRAL SERVER IN AREAS THAT I

         15   WAS DIRECTLY RESPONSIBLE FOR.

         16             I DID NOT REVIEW SPECIFICALLY ALL OF THE

         17   ONLINE-SERVICE-FOLDER CONTRACTS BECAUSE MY COLLEAGUE, BRAD

         18   CHASE, IS GOING TO HANDLE THAT IN HIS TESTIMONY.  SO ALL I

         19   WAS TRYING TO DO WAS BE VERY ACCURATE AS TO WHAT I KNEW

         20   POSITIVELY.

         21             NOW, THAT DOESN'T MEAN THAT IN YEARS PAST, I

         22   DIDN'T RECEIVE A PIECE OF E-MAIL THAT WOULD HAVE INFORMED ME

         23   OF THAT.  BUT AS I STOOD BEFORE -- AS I SAT BEFORE YOU

         24   YESTERDAY AND TODAY, I'M NOT THE EXPERT ON THE ONLINE

         25   SERVICES FOLDER.
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          1   Q.  YOU DO UNDERSTAND THAT WHEN I ASK YOU QUESTIONS, I'M NOT

          2   ASKING YOU WHETHER YOU'RE THE EXPERT ON IT.  I'M ASKING YOU

          3   WHETHER YOU KNOW IT -- WHETHER YOU KNOW IT FROM BEING THE

          4   EXPERT OR YOU JUST KNOW IT FROM DEALING WITH OTHER PEOPLE.

          5   A.  OKAY.

          6   Q.  HOW MANY -- OR MAYBE THE BETTER WAY TO ASK IT IS WHAT

          7   PERCENTAGE OF BROWSERS SHIPPED BY ISP'S IN THE WINDOWS

          8   REFERRAL SERVER WERE IE AFTER ISP'S SIGNED ON TO THE

          9   REFERRAL SERVER?

         10   A.  AFTER THEY BECAME MEMBERS OF THAT PROGRAM?

         11   Q.  YES.

         12   A.  IT VARIES GREATLY.  THERE ARE SOME COMPANIES THAT

         13   SHIPPED A VERY, VERY HIGH PERCENTAGE OF INTERNET EXPLORER.

         14   THERE ARE SOME COMPANIES THAT SHIPPED A VERY LOW PERCENTAGE

         15   OF INTERNET EXPLORER.

         16   Q.  LET ME SEE IF I CAN TRY TO GIVE YOU SOMETHING THAT'S

         17   MAYBE A LITTLE MORE GENERAL THAT YOU CAN ANSWER.  OVERALL,

         18   TAKING ALL OF THEM TOGETHER, YOU TRACKED WHAT PERCENTAGE OF

         19   THE ISP'S IN THE INTERNET REFERRAL SERVER WERE SHIPPING IE,

         20   CORRECT?

         21   A.  WE CERTAINLY ATTEMPTED TO DO THAT, THAT'S RIGHT.

         22   Q.  AND, OVERALL, WHAT WAS THAT PERCENTAGE?

         23   A.  IT VARIED RADICALLY IN TIME.

         24   Q.  ALL RIGHT.

         25   A.  I THINK I HAVE ACTUALLY AN EXHIBIT TO MY TESTIMONY THAT

                                                                              39

          1   MIGHT COVER THAT.

          2   Q.  ALL RIGHT.  IF THAT WOULD HELP YOU.  IF YOU'LL JUST TELL

          3   ME, AFTER YOU FIND IT, WHAT THE EXHIBIT NUMBER IS, I'LL GET

          4   IT OUT.

          5   A.  NO.  THE DOCUMENT THAT I THOUGHT WE HAD INCLUDED HERE IS

          6   NOT INCLUDED HERE.  ON DX 2242, I DO LIST SOME ACTUAL

          7   SHIPMENTS OF INTERNET EXPLORER AND NON-MIRCOSOFT BROWSING

          8   SOFTWARE AS ISP'S REPORTED IT TO US.  AND YOU CAN SEE HERE

          9   IT VARIES CONSIDERABLY.

         10             THESE PARTICULAR EXAMPLES SHOW VERY LARGE

         11   DISTRIBUTIONS OF OTHER NON-MIRCOSOFT BROWSING SOFTWARE.  OF

         12   COURSE, THERE PROBABLY WOULD BE OTHER COMPANIES IN THE

         13   REFERRAL SERVER THAT WOULD NOT REFLECT THIS KIND OF

         14   DISTRIBUTION.

         15   Q.  ALL RIGHT.  LET ME SEE IF I CAN UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE

         16   SAYING.  YOU'RE SAYING THAT THE DOCUMENT THAT YOU THOUGHT

         17   WAS IN YOUR EXHIBITS IS NOT IN YOUR EXHIBITS; IS THAT

         18   CORRECT?

         19   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.

         20   Q.  DO YOU KNOW WHY IT WAS REMOVED FROM YOUR EXHIBITS?

         21   A.  I DON'T KNOW THAT IT WAS REMOVED FROM THE EXHIBITS.  I

         22   MAY HAVE BEEN THINKING OF A PIECE OF BACK-UP DATA THAT WE

         23   DECIDED NOT TO INCLUDE.

         24   Q.  BY "REMOVED," ALL I MEANT WAS DO YOU KNOW WHY IT WAS

         25   DECIDED NOT TO INCLUDE THIS EXHIBIT IN THE EXHIBITS THAT YOU

                                                                              40

          1   ATTACHED TO YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

          2   A.  NO, SIR.  I'M SURE IT WAS PRODUCED TO THE GOVERNMENT.  I

          3   DO NOT KNOW WHY IT DOES NOT APPEAR IN MY EXHIBITS.

          4   Q.  WHAT MAKES YOU SO CERTAIN IT WAS PRODUCED TO THE

          5   GOVERNMENT?

          6   A.  I BELIEVE I WAS ASKED QUESTIONS ABOUT THIS.  IT IS A

          7   SPREADSHEET CREATED BY SUSAN NORBERG, WHO WAS MY FINANCE

          8   PERSON, AND I BELIEVE THAT THERE WERE QUESTIONS ABOUT THAT

          9   IN A DEPOSITION.  I COULD BE WRONG ABOUT THAT.

         10   Q.  BUT, IN ANY EVENT, WE'VE ACTUALLY SEEN THE SUSAN

         11   NORBERG -- IS HER NAME BUTCHER WAS HER NAME BUTCHER?

         12   A.  IT WAS NORBERG, AND SHE GOT MARRIED AND IT BECAME

         13   BUTCHER, THAT'S RIGHT.

         14   Q.  OKAY.  BECAUSE WE'VE SEEN SOMETHING FROM HER WITH

         15   "BUTCHER" IN PARENTHESES.

         16   A.  YES.

         17   Q.  AND THAT'S THE DOCUMENT YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT?

         18   A.  YES.  YOU MAY HAVE MULTIPLE DOCUMENTS FROM HER, BUT I AM

         19   THINKING ABOUT ONE OF THOSE, YES.

         20   Q.  A ONE-PAGE DOCUMENT?

         21   A.  I THINK SO, YES.  I THINK IT'S A SPREADSHEET THAT GOES

         22   ACROSS LENGTHWISE ON THE PAGE.

         23   Q.  OKAY.  I THINK I KNOW WHAT YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT, BUT AT

         24   THE NEXT BREAK WE'LL TRY TO FIND IT AND CONFIRM IT.

         25             IN TERMS OF WHAT IS ATTACHED TO YOUR TESTIMONY,
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          1   THERE ISN'T ANYTHING THAT SHOWS THE OVERALL PERCENTAGE OF IE

          2   SHIPMENTS FROM ISP'S IN THE REFERRAL SERVER, CORRECT?

          3   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.

          4   Q.  NOW, AS YOU SIT HERE NOW, CAN YOU GIVE ME AN ESTIMATE

          5   FOR 1997 AS TO WHAT PERCENTAGE OF THE SHIPMENTS BY REFERRAL

          6   SERVER ISP'S WERE REPRESENTED BY IE?

          7   A.  BOY, I'M SURE I KNEW THOSE NUMBERS.  AND I'M SURE I KNEW

          8   THEM FOR A RANGE OF TIMES.  I'M CERTAINLY NOT POSITIVE WHAT

          9   THAT NUMBER WOULD BE.  I GUESS I WOULD HAZARD A GUESS TO SAY

         10   IN THIS TIMEFRAME I SEEM TO RECALL, FROM THE DATA THAT WE

         11   HAD, IT WOULD PROBABLY BE SOMETHING LIKE 65 PERCENT.  BUT,

         12   AGAIN, I'D NEED TO QUALIFY THAT BECAUSE THAT'S RELYING

         13   PRETTY MUCH SOLELY ON MY MEMORY.

         14             I'D ALSO SAY THAT THERE WERE SOME COMPANIES WHO

         15   WOULD NOT TELL US THE NUMBERS OF NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR THAT

         16   THEY DISTRIBUTED, AND THAT EVEN FOR THE NUMBERS OF INTERNET

         17   EXPLORER THAT WE RECEIVED, THAT DATA IS, I THINK, ACCURATE,

         18   BUT INCOMPLETE.  IN OTHER WORDS, WE DON'T HAVE IT FOR EACH

         19   AND EVERY QUARTER.

         20   Q.  LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT A DOCUMENT THAT HAS BEEN

         21   PREVIOUSLY MARKED AS GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 368.  THIS IS A

         22   DOCUMENT FROM SUSAN NORBERG.  IT DOES NOT SHOW YOU AS

         23   RECEIVING A COPY OF IT, BUT IS THIS THE TYPE OF REPORT THAT

         24   WAS REGULARLY AND ROUTINELY PREPARED ON A MONTHLY OR

         25   QUARTERLY BASIS, SIR?
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          1   A.  ON A QUARTERLY BASIS, YES, WE DID TRY AND DO THIS.  AND

          2   THE DOCUMENT I WAS THINKING ABOUT WAS THIS SPREADSHEET.  THE

          3   SAME SPREADSHEET WAS CARRIED OUT FOR AN ENTIRE YEAR SO YOU

          4   COULD SEE THE QUARTER-BY-QUARTER DISTRIBUTION.

          5   Q.  AND THIS DOCUMENT, AS YOU SAY, MAY VERY WELL BE

          6   INCOMPLETE BECAUSE IT DOESN'T SHOW ANY SHIPMENTS AT ALL FROM

          7   AOL, CORRECT?

          8   A.  IT DOESN'T SHOW ANY SHIPMENTS AT ALL FROM AOL OR FROM

          9   NETCOM-CANADA, OR AT&T, OR BRIGADOON, OR MCI, OR MINDSPRING

         10   OR SPRY?

         11   Q.  THE ONES THAT ARE LISTED HERE SHOW THAT IE SHIPMENTS

         12   REPRESENTED 71.2 PERCENT, CORRECT, SIR?

         13   A.  YES, ALTHOUGH THAT WHOLE SECTION OF THE SPREADSHEET IS

         14   MARKED "OCTOBER-DECEMBER," AND IN PARENTHESES, "PRELIM,"

         15   WHICH I BELIEVE MEANS PRELIMINARY.

         16   Q.  AND DO I TAKE IT THAT SOMEWHERE THERE EXISTS A REPORT

         17   THAT WOULD SHOW THE FINAL NUMBERS FOR OCTOBER THROUGH

         18   DECEMBER OF 1997, AS WELL AS THE FIRST TWO QUARTERS OF 1998?

         19   A.  I BELIEVE THE VERY SPREADSHEET THAT I WAS THINKING ABOUT

         20   AND REFERRING TO WOULD SHOW THE FOURTH QUARTER OF 1996 AND

         21   ALL OF 1997.  SO I DON'T KNOW IF THERE'S A DOCUMENT THAT

         22   PRECISELY HAS IN TIME THIS QUARTER AND THE FOLLOWING TWO

         23   QUARTERS.  I KNOW THERE'S A DOCUMENT THAT I HAVE SEEN THAT

         24   SHOWS THIS QUARTER AND THE PRECEDING FOUR QUARTERS.

         25   Q.  NOW, IN ADDITION, DO YOU KNOW THAT DOCUMENTS FOR THE
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          1   FIRST TWO QUARTERS OF 1998 WERE, IN FACT, PREPARED IN YOUR

          2   ORGANIZATION?

          3   A.  NO, SIR.  I DO NOT.

          4   Q.  LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT A DOCUMENT THAT'S PREVIOUSLY

          5   BEEN ADMITTED AS GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 424.

          6             THE COURT:  BEFORE WE DO THAT, LET'S TAKE A BRIEF

          7   RECESS.

          8             MR. BOIES:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

          9             (RECESS WAS TAKEN.)

         10             (AFTER RECESS.)

         11             THE COURT: ALL RIGHT.  YOU'RE ON EXHIBIT 424, IS

         12   THAT RIGHT?

         13             MR. BOIES:  WE ARE, YOUR HONOR.

         14             NOW, EXHIBIT 424 HAS BEEN ADMITTED UNDER SEAL, AND

         15   I AM GOING TO USE ONLY THE FIRST PAGE, THE COVER PAGE AND

         16   PAGE 589.  AND I HAVE CHECKED WITH MR. HOLLEY AND THESE

         17   PAGES DO NOT PRESENT A PROBLEM.

         18             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

         19   BY MR. BOIES:

         20   Q.  FIRST LET ME GO TO THE COVER PAGE.  AND THIS IS A

         21   DOCUMENT THAT YOU PREPARED ON OR ABOUT JANUARY 23, 1998, IS

         22   THAT CORRECT, SIR?

         23   A.  YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

         24   Q.  AND WHAT WAS THE PURPOSE OF PREPARING THIS?

         25   A.  TWICE A YEAR, I WOULD PRESENT MY BUSINESS TO MY
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          1   MANAGEMENT, AND I WOULD DO THAT AS PART OF THE INITIAL

          2   FISCAL-YEAR PLANNING, AND THEN ALSO AT WHAT IS CALLED THE

          3   MID-YEAR REVIEW.  THIS IS AN EXAMPLE OF A MID-YEAR REVIEW

          4   FOR MY GROUP FOR OUR FISCAL YEAR 1998, AND IT TOOK PLACE, IT

          5   SEEMS, ON THE 23RD OF JANUARY, 1998.

          6   Q.  NOW, ON PAGE 589, THERE IS A HEADING CALLED

          7   "S1 HIGHLIGHTS."  CAN YOU EXPLAIN WHAT "S1 HIGHLIGHTS"

          8   REFERS TO?

          9   A.  YES.  TYPICALLY, FOR THESE PRESENTATIONS, YOU'RE GIVEN A

         10   TEMPLATE TO FILL IN.  SO THERE ARE VERY SPECIFIC SLIDES THAT

         11   MY MANAGEMENT WANTS TO SEE ACROSS THE BUSINESSES THAT THEY

         12   MANAGE.  ONE OF THOSE TEMPLATE SLIDES WOULD BE A HIGHLIGHT

         13   SLIDE -- THAT IS, THE THINGS THAT WE ARE PROUD OF THAT WE

         14   HAVE ACCOMPLISHED FOR THE FIRST HALF OF FY '98, AND THERE

         15   WOULD BE A COROLLARY LOWLIGHT SLIDE FOR THE THINGS THAT WE

         16   WERE NOT PROUD OF, OR THE REAL CHALLENGES THAT WE CONTINUED

         17   TO FACE OR PROBLEMS THAT WE HAD.

         18   Q.  AND DOES "S1" SIMPLY REFER TO SLIDE ONE?

         19   A.  NO.  SEMESTER ONE.  THE FIRST HALF IS WHAT THAT TENDS TO

         20   MEAN.

         21   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, THE SECOND HIGHLIGHT THAT YOU LIST HERE IS

         22   "GOOD PROGRESS ON BROWSER SHARE AND DISTRIBUTION."  DO YOU

         23   SEE THAT?

         24   A.  YES, SIR, I DO.

         25   Q.  AND YOU GO ON TO SAY "82 PERCENT IE DISTRIBUTION BY TOP
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          1   8 OLS/ISP'S."

          2             DO YOU SEE THAT?

          3   A.  YES, I DO.

          4   Q.  AND THEN YOU SAY, "AOL UPGRADE PROGRAM -- NOW 92 PERCENT

          5   IE."

          6   A.  YES, I DO.

          7   Q.  WHAT DID YOU MEAN WHEN YOU REFERRED TO THE AOL UPGRADE

          8   PROGRAM BEING NOW 92 PERCENT IE?

          9   A.  I AM NOT EXACTLY SURE.  I BELIEVE THAT WOULD HAVE BEEN A

         10   MEASUREMENT I WOULD HAVE GOTTEN FROM BRAD CHASE OR MAURICIO

         11   CONCERNING THE STATUS OF AOL'S DISTRIBUTION OF INTERNET

         12   EXPLORER.

         13   Q.  AND WHEN YOU REFER TO 82 PERCENT IE DISTRIBUTION FROM

         14   THE TOP 8 ONLINE SERVICE PROVIDERS AND INTERNET SERVICE

         15   PROVIDERS, THAT IS IE HAS 82 PERCENT AND OTHER BROWSERS HAVE

         16   18 PERCENT?

         17   A.  I AM NOT EXACTLY SURE WHAT THAT REFERS TO.  THAT NUMBER

         18   STRIKES ME AS HIGH.  SO I AM NOT EXACTLY SURE WHAT THAT

         19   REFERS TO.

         20             IN THESE DOCUMENTS, TYPICALLY WE WOULD REPORT TWO

         21   THINGS.  WE WOULD REPORT THE ACTUAL DISTRIBUTION, IF WE KNEW

         22   IT, AND IF WE DIDN'T, WE WOULD REPORT THE CONTRACTUAL

         23   COMMITMENT THAT THESE ISP'S HAD MADE.  AND I AM NOT EXACTLY

         24   SURE WHAT THIS REFERS TO.

         25             THE 82-PERCENT FIGURE I RECALL IS NOT ONE
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          1   ASSOCIATED WITH THE TOP 8 OLS'S OR ISP'S.  RATHER, I RECALL

          2   THAT WE ACHIEVED -- WE GOT 82 PERCENT, ON NUMERIC BASIS, OF

          3   ALL THE SMALL ISP'S IN NORTH AMERICA TO LICENSE INTERNET

          4   EXPLORER.

          5             I REMEMBER THAT NUMBER VERY CLEARLY.  AND,

          6   ACTUALLY, ON THE PREVIOUS SLIDE, IT MENTIONS THAT.  SO I AM

          7   NOT COMPLETELY SURE WHAT THIS REFERS TO.  IT MAY BE A

          8   COINCIDENCE THAT THE NUMBERS ARE THE SAME.

          9   Q.  NOW, ON THE PRIOR PAGE, THE THING THAT YOU'RE REFERRING

         10   TO IS WHERE -- AND LET'S NOT GO TO THIS, BECAUSE I AM NOT

         11   SURE WHETHER THERE IS SOMETHING ELSE ON IT THAT THEY MAY

         12   THINK IS CONFIDENTIAL.

         13             IF MR. HOLLEY WOULD ADVISE ME AS TO WHETHER THERE

         14   IS ANY PROBLEM IN SHOWING 588, I CAN DO THAT IF HE AGREES.

         15             BUT JUST WITH RESPECT TO WHAT YOU SAID,

         16   MR. MYHRVOLD, WHEN YOU REFERRED TO THE PRIOR PAGE, YOU WERE

         17   REFERRING TO SOMETHING UNDER "FISCAL YEAR 1998, YEAR-TO-DATE

         18   PROGRESS," AND ONE OF THE ITEMS THERE WAS THAT 82 PERCENT OF

         19   WHAT YOU REFERRED TO AS BREADTH ISP'S, SHIP INTERNET

         20   EXPLORER AS THEIR PRIMARY BROWSER, IS THAT CORRECT?

         21   A.  YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

         22   Q.  AND I AM I CORRECT THAT "BREADTH ISP'S" MEANS THE

         23   SMALLER ISP'S?

         24   A.  YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

         25   Q.  AND THERE IS A REFERENCE TO SOMETHING CALLED "DEPTH
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          1   ISP'S."  AND THOSE ARE THE LARGER ISP'S?

          2   A.  THAT'S RIGHT.  IT TENDS TO HAVE TO DO WITH WHICH

          3   ACCOUNTS WE MANAGE DIRECTLY AND WHICH ONES WE ONLY HAVE

          4   CONTACT THROUGH E-MAIL OR AN OCCASIONAL PHONE CALL.

          5   Q.  NOW, LET ME GO BACK TO PAGE 589.  ACCEPTING FOR THE

          6   MOMENT THAT THERE IS A QUESTION AS TO WHAT IS BEING

          7   MEASURED, ARE WE IN AGREEMENT THAT WHEN YOU TALK ABOUT AN

          8   82-PERCENT IE DISTRIBUTION SHARE, YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT IE

          9   HAVING 82 PERCENT OF SOMETHING AND OTHER BROWSERS HAVING 18

         10   PERCENT OF SOMETHING?

         11   A.  THAT'S WHAT THIS SEEMS TO SAY.  AGAIN, I DON'T KNOW

         12   EXACTLY WHAT THIS REFERS TO.  I DON'T HAVE -- I DON'T RECALL

         13   82 PERCENT BEING THE FIGURE.

         14             I ALSO DON'T THINK WE GOT DISTRIBUTION DATA FROM

         15   ALL THE TOP 8 ONLINE SERVICES OR ISP'S.  SO MAYBE THIS IS

         16   REPORTING FOR THE ISP'S THAT WE HAVE DATA FOR.  I AM NOT

         17   EXACTLY SURE.

         18             I LOOKED HERE IN THE BACK TO SEE IF THERE WAS A

         19   BACK-UP SLIDE BECAUSE SOMETIMES WE PROVIDE BACK-UP SLIDES

         20   WITH MORE DETAIL, BUT THERE DOESN'T SEEM TO BE ANYTHING

         21   RELATING TO THAT FIGURE.

         22   Q.  IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT WHEN YOU MADE THIS PRESENTATION,

         23   YOU WERE TRYING TO MAKE IT AS ACCURATE AS POSSIBLE?

         24   A.  YES.  CERTAINLY.

         25   Q.  AND WOULD IT BE FAIR TO SAY THAT AT THE TIME YOU MADE
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          1   THIS PRESENTATION ABOUT A YEAR AGO, YOU BELIEVED THAT THE

          2   BEST FIGURES YOU HAD INDICATED THAT IE'S DISTRIBUTION SHARE

          3   FOR THE TOP 8 ONLINE SERVICE PROVIDERS AND INTERNET SERVICE

          4   PROVIDERS WAS 82 PERCENT?

          5   A.  THAT'S WHAT THIS SEEMS TO SAY.  AS I SAY, IT STRIKES ME

          6   AS PRETTY HIGH.  I DON'T KNOW IF THAT'S AT THE END OF THE

          7   MID-YEAR OR IF THAT REALLY WAS SOMETHING THAT PURPORTS TO

          8   MEASURE SHIPMENTS FOR THE ENTIRE FIRST HALF.  IF IT PURPORTS

          9   SHIPMENTS FOR THE ENTIRE FIRST HALF, THEN IT STRIKES ME AS

         10   VERY HIGH.

         11   Q.  NOW, WITH RESPECT TO THE 92-PERCENT FIGURE, WHERE YOU

         12   INDICATE THAT AOL IS SHIPPING 92 PERCENT INTERNET EXPLORER,

         13   DO YOU THINK THAT FIGURE IS ACCURATE?

         14   A.  I AM SURE IT IS A NUMBER THAT I WOULD HAVE RECEIVED FROM

         15   MAURICIO OR BRAD CHASE.  THAT TALKS ABOUT AN AOL UPGRADE

         16   PROGRAM.

         17             SO, AGAIN, I DON'T KNOW IF THIS IS MEASURING THE

         18   OVERALL SHARE OF AOL OR JUST A SPECIFIC UPGRADE POTENTIALLY

         19   OF THEIR INSTALLED BASE.  I DON'T KNOW.

         20   Q.  WOULD YOU THINK IT'S PROBABLY UPGRADING FROM THEIR

         21   INSTALLED BASE SINCE IT USES THE WORD "UPGRADE" AS OPPOSED

         22   TO "DISTRIBUTION"?

         23   A.  IT COULD BE.  IT COULD ALSO BE SAYING THE AOL UPGRADE

         24   PROGRAM WAS SO SUCCESSFUL THAT OVERALL THEIR SHARE IS THAT.

         25   I DON'T KNOW.

                                                                              49

          1   Q.  BUT ONE OR THE OTHER.  IS THAT FAIR?

          2   A.  IT SEEMS THAT WAY, YES.

          3   Q.  AND EITHER AOL'S ENTIRE INSTALLED BASE OR AOL'S UPGRADE

          4   OF EXISTING USERS IS NOW 92 PERCENT.  THAT'S WHAT'S BEING

          5   SAID HERE?  92 PERCENT IE?

          6   A.  IT SEEMS TO ME IT WOULD BE ONE OF THOSE TWO THINGS.

          7   AGAIN, I THINK BRAD CHASE WILL WANT TO COVER THIS IN GREAT

          8   DETAIL.

          9   Q.  OKAY.  I WILL RESERVE YET ANOTHER DOCUMENT FOR

         10   MR. CHASE'S FOLDER.

         11             LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT A DOCUMENT THAT HAS BEEN

         12   PREVIOUSLY MARKED AS GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT 1789.  AND I SHOW

         13   YOU THIS DOCUMENT, SIR, TO SEE IF THIS IS THE SPREADSHEET

         14   THAT YOU REFERRED TO BEFORE THE BREAK.  IT MAY OR MAY NOT

         15   BE, BUT THIS IS THE DOCUMENT THAT I COULD FIND THAT WAS

         16   CLOSEST TO THE DESCRIPTION YOU GAVE.

         17   A.  THIS IS THE DOCUMENT THAT I WAS THINKING ABOUT, YES.

         18             MR. BOIES:  IN THAT CASE, YOUR HONOR, I OFFER

         19   GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT 1789.

         20             MR. HOLLEY:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

         21             THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 1789 IS ADMITTED.

         22                                   (WHEREUPON, PLAINTIFF'S

         23                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 1789 WAS

         24                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)

         25   BY MR. BOIES:

                                                                              50

          1   Q.  NOW, THIS DOCUMENT ATTEMPTS TO SHOW QUARTER BY QUARTER,

          2   BEGINNING WITH THE LAST QUARTER OF 1996, SHIPMENT

          3   INFORMATION OF THE TYPE THAT WE WERE TALKING ABOUT BEFORE

          4   THE BREAK, CORRECT?

          5   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.

          6   Q.  NOW, THE OCTOBER-DECEMBER QUARTER -- THE VERY LAST

          7   QUARTER -- IS STILL INDICATED TO BE PRELIMINARY, CORRECT?

          8   A.  YES, IT IS.

          9   Q.  NOW, WE HAVE TRIED TO SEE IF WE COULD FIND A LATER

         10   VERSION OF THIS.  WE HAVE BEEN UNABLE TO DO SO.

         11             DO YOU RECALL WHETHER THERE WERE LATER VERSIONS OF

         12   THIS PREPARED?

         13   A.  CERTAINLY I KNOW WE KEPT VERY CLOSE TRACK -- WELL, WE

         14   COLLECTED THE DATA, AS YOU SEE HERE, FOR THE FOURTH QUARTER

         15   OF 1996 AND THROUGH 1997.  I DON'T KNOW IF THERE WAS A

         16   SUMMARY DONE THAT WOULD INCLUDE THE FIRST QUARTER OF 1998.

         17             AS YOU KNOW, WE WAIVED THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS

         18   SURROUNDING SHIPMENT PERCENTAGES IN THE REFERRAL SERVER IN

         19   APRIL OF 1998.  SO I AM SURE THERE WOULDN'T BE SOMETHING

         20   DONE FOR, SAY, THE SECOND QUARTER OF 1998.

         21   Q.  AFTER YOU WAIVED THE RESTRICTIONS IN THE INTERNET

         22   REFERRAL SERVER AGREEMENTS, DID YOU CONTINUE TO KEEP TRACK

         23   OF WHAT THE RELATIVE SHIPMENTS WERE BETWEEN NETSCAPE AND

         24   MICROSOFT?

         25   A.  ONLY ANECDOTALLY.  NOT TO THIS DEGREE OF DETAIL.
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          1   Q.  LET ME TURN NOW TO PARAGRAPH 57 OF YOUR DIRECT

          2   TESTIMONY.  AND THE PORTION THAT I AM PARTICULARLY

          3   INTERESTED IN IS THE SECOND SENTENCE IN WHICH YOU SAY --

          4             THE COURT:  I AM SORRY, MR. BOIES.  WHERE ARE YOU?

          5             MR. BOIES:  I AM SORRY.  THIS IS PARAGRAPH 57 OF

          6   HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY.

          7             THE COURT:  OF HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY.

          8             MR. BOIES:  AND IT IS ON PAGE 27.

          9             THE COURT: I HAVE IT.

         10   BY MR. BOIES:

         11   Q.  AND YOU SAY, "THE ISP'S IN THE WINDOWS 95 REFERRAL

         12   SERVER WERE NEVER REQUIRED TO DISTRIBUTE INTERNET EXPLORER

         13   TO ANY SPECIFIED PERCENTAGE OF THEIR CUSTOMERS."

         14             DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

         15   A.  YES, I DO.

         16   Q.  AND YOU HAVE ITALICIZED THE WORDS "REQUIRED" AND "ANY"

         17   IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY, CORRECT?

         18   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

         19   Q.  NOW, IS IT THE CASE THAT THE CONTRACTS THAT ISP'S SIGNED

         20   REQUIRED THEM, AT LEAST FOR MOST ISP'S IN THE REFERRAL

         21   SERVER, TO DISTRIBUTE INTERNET EXPLORER 75 PERCENT OF THEIR

         22   SHIPMENTS?

         23   A.  THAT IS WHAT WE REQUEST AS PART OF THE CO-MARKETING

         24   AGREEMENT.  I THINK I SHOULD EXPLAIN THIS SENTENCE BECAUSE I

         25   AM MAKING A FAIRLY SUBTLE POINT.
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          1             THE REFERRAL SERVER AGREEMENTS WERE BETWEEN ONE

          2   AND TWO YEARS IN LENGTH, AND THE POINT THAT I AM TRYING TO

          3   MAKE HERE IS AT ANY TIME THE ISP WISHED, THEY COULD STOP

          4   SHIPPING INTERNET EXPLORER.  THEY COULD SHIP ANY PERCENTAGE

          5   OF WHATEVER BROWSER THEY WANT.  THEY WERE NOT LOCKED IN FOR

          6   THAT PERIOD OF TIME.

          7             NOW, IF THEY DID FALL FOR TWO CONSECUTIVE CALENDAR

          8   QUARTERS, TYPICALLY BELOW 75 PERCENT -- IN SOME CASES, ONLY

          9   FIFTY PERCENT -- THEN WE HAD THE RIGHT TO REMOVE THEM FROM

         10   THE REFERRAL SERVER.  BUT THE POINT HERE OF WHY I SAY THEY

         11   WERE NEVER REQUIRED TO DISTRIBUTE INTERNET EXPLORER TO ANY

         12   SPECIFIED PERCENTAGE IS THAT THEIR DISTRIBUTION COULD

         13   FLUCTUATE, AND IF IT FELL BELOW THE PERCENTAGE TARGETS THAT

         14   WE HAD IN THE REFERRAL SERVER CONTRACTS, OUR RECOURSE WAS

         15   LIMITED TO REMOVING THEM FROM THE REFERRAL SERVER.  THEIR

         16   LICENSE TO CONTRACT EVERYTHING ELSE WOULD REMAIN IN FULL

         17   FORCE AND EFFECT.

         18             SO MAYBE A BETTER WAY TO CHARACTERIZE THIS IS THAT

         19   THE ISP'S HAD THE RIGHT TO STOP SHIPPING INTERNET EXPLORER

         20   TO ANY SPECIFIED PERCENTAGE WHENEVER THEY WANTED.  THEY

         21   WEREN'T LOCKED INTO THAT FOR THE TERM OF THE AGREEMENT.

         22   Q.  I THINK I UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING.  AND IT'S A

         23   USEFUL CLARIFICATION, BUT LET ME BE SURE.

         24             WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS THAT THE ISP'S COULD SHIP

         25   WHATEVER PERCENTAGE OF MICROSOFT'S BROWSER AND NETSCAPE'S
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          1   BROWSER THEY WANTED, BUT IF THEY WANTED TO BE IN THE

          2   REFERRAL SERVER, THEY HAD TO SHIP 75 PERCENT INTERNET

          3   EXPLORER IN GENERAL.  IS THAT ACCURATE?

          4   A.  YES.  THERE WAS A SPECIFIED PERCENTAGE -- FOR SPRINT AND

          5   NETCOM, IT WAS FIFTY PERCENT.  FOR THE OTHERS, IT WAS 75

          6   PERCENT.  AND, YES, THAT'S CORRECT?

          7             AND I'D ALSO SAY THAT -- I WOULD ADD TO THAT AND

          8   SAY THAT THERE CERTAINLY WERE COMPANIES THAT NEVER MET THEIR

          9   PERCENTAGE OF SHIPMENTS, AND WE NEVER REMOVED THOSE PEOPLE

         10   FROM THE REFERRAL SERVER.

         11   Q.  NOW, WHEN YOU SAY THERE WERE PEOPLE WHO NEVER MET THEIR

         12   RESTRICTION OR SHIPMENT REQUIREMENTS, LET ME BE SURE I AM

         13   CLEAR WHAT YOU'RE REFERRING TO.

         14             EVERY CONTRACT THAT WAS SIGNED WITH A COMPANY TO

         15   BE IN THE REFERRAL SERVER REQUIRED THE ISP TO SHIP A

         16   SPECIFIC PERCENTAGE OF ITS BROWSERS AS IE BROWSERS, IF IT

         17   WERE TO REMAIN IN THE REFERRAL SERVER; IS THAT FAIR?

         18   A.  THAT'S WHAT IT SAYS IN THE CONTRACT, YES.

         19   Q.  AND IN SOME CASES -- IN MOST CASES, THAT PERCENTAGE WAS

         20   75 PERCENT, BUT WITH RESPECT TO SPRINT AND NETCOM, IT WAS

         21   FIFTY PERCENT; IS THAT CORRECT?

         22   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.

         23   Q.  NOW, YOU SAID SOME OF THE PEOPLE NEVER MET THOSE

         24   PERCENTAGES?

         25   A.  CORRECT.
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          1   Q.  WHO NEVER MET THOSE PERCENTAGE?

          2   A.  WELL, PEOPLE WHO MISSED THOSE PERCENTAGES FOR MORE THAN

          3   TWO QUARTERS -- TWO CALENDAR QUARTERS, AS SPECIFIED IN THE

          4   CONTRACT -- WOULD BE NETCOM AND EARTHLINK AND CONCENTRIC.

          5   Q.  NOW, MY QUESTION WAS A LITTLE DIFFERENT BECAUSE IT CAME

          6   OFF OF ONE OF YOUR ANSWERS.  YOU SAID THERE WERE SOME PEOPLE

          7   THAT NEVER MET THOSE RESTRICTIONS, NOT THAT MISSED IT FOR

          8   TWO QUARTERS.  WHAT I WANT TO KNOW IS WHO NEVER MET IT, IF

          9   ANYONE?

         10   A.  NEVER MET IT?  I PROBABLY SHOULDN'T PHRASE IT THAT WAY.

         11   I BELIEVE THOUGH THAT CONCENTRIC DID NOT.  I THINK IT'S

         12   POSSIBLE THAT EARTHLINK DID NOT.

         13   Q.  NOW, WITH RESPECT TO CONCENTRIC, ONE OF THE REASONS THAT

         14   CONCENTRIC DIDN'T MEET ITS SHIPMENT REQUIREMENTS IN TERMS OF

         15   HOW MANY OR WHAT PERCENTAGE OF IE IT WAS SUPPOSED TO SHIP

         16   WAS BECAUSE IT TAKES A WHILE FOR A COMPANY TO SHIFT OVER,

         17   ONCE THEY SIGN AN AGREEMENT, CORRECT?

         18   A.  WELL, I WOULD SAY THAT EVERY COMPANY IN THE REFERRAL

         19   SERVER TOOK SOME TIME TO SPEED UP -- TO RAMP UP ON INTERNET

         20   EXPLORER, AND WE DID NOT SEE, YOU KNOW, INSTANT MEETING OF

         21   THAT PERCENTAGE, NOR DID WE REQUIRE THAT UNDER THE CONTRACT.

         22             SO I THINK THAT IS TRUE FOR EVERYONE.  CERTAINLY

         23   IT WAS TRUE FOR CONCENTRIC.

         24   Q.  AND, FOR EXAMPLE, THE ONE THAT YOU IDENTIFIED IN YOUR

         25   DEPOSITION THAT WAS NOT MEETING ITS PERCENTAGE WAS
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          1   CONCENTRIC; CORRECT, SIR?

          2   A.  THAT'S CORRECT, ALTHOUGH CERTAINLY AT TIMES NETCOM AND

          3   EARTHLINK DID NOT MEET THOSE EITHER FOR EXTENDED PERIODS OF

          4   TIME.

          5   Q.  NOW, WHEN PEOPLE DID NOT MEET THOSE REQUIREMENTS, YOU

          6   MADE EFFORTS TO GET THEM TO MEET THOSE REQUIREMENTS,

          7   CORRECT?

          8   A.  WE WOULD CERTAINLY TAKE NOTICE.  WE WOULD PHONE THEM OR

          9   GO VISIT THEM AND SEE IF THERE WAS SOMETHING WE COULD DO TO

         10   HELP FACILITATE THEIR SHIPPING OF INTERNET EXPLORER.

         11             YOU KNOW, WAS THERE A TECHNICAL ISSUE THAT THEY

         12   WERE HAVING TROUBLE WITH?  WAS THERE AN ISSUE OF TRAINING

         13   THEIR SUPPORT STAFF THAT WE COULD HELP WITH?  SO WE

         14   CERTAINLY DID THOSE THINGS, YES.

         15   Q.  AND ONE OF THE THINGS THAT YOU WERE TRYING TO DO WAS TO

         16   PREVENT A SITUATION IN WHICH THE ISP WAS OFFERING THEIR

         17   SUBSCRIBERS A CHOICE BETWEEN TWO BROWSERS, NETSCAPE'S AND

         18   MICROSOFT'S, CORRECT?

         19   A.  NO, SIR.  EVERY ISP HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO OFFER THEIR

         20   CUSTOMERS WHATEVER BROWSERS THAT THEY WANTED AND, IN FACT,

         21   THEY DID.  IN FACT, THE CASES THAT I NAMED, WITH EARTHLINK,

         22   WITH NETCOM, AND WITH CONCENTRIC, THEY OFFERED THEIR

         23   CUSTOMERS -- THEY DISTRIBUTED NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR FAR MORE

         24   OFTEN THAN THEY DISTRIBUTED INTERNET EXPLORER.

         25   Q.  I WANT TO COME BACK TO MY QUESTION, BUT LET ME JUST
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          1   FOLLOW UP BECAUSE YOU KEEP MENTIONING NETCOM AND EARTHLINK

          2   AND CONCENTRIC.

          3             FIRST, AFTER THEY GOT RAMPED UP, NETCOM AND

          4   EARTHLINK DID MEET THEIR REQUIREMENTS UNDER THEIR CONTRACT;

          5   CORRECT, SIR?

          6   A.  I AM NOT SURE THEY DID.

          7   Q.  DO YOU KNOW ONE WAY OR THE OTHER?

          8   A.  I DO NOT BELIEVE THAT NETCOM DID.  I BELIEVE THAT

          9   EARTHLINK CERTAINLY CAME CLOSE.

         10   Q.  AND WHAT WAS NETCOM'S PERCENTAGE?  THAT WAS FIFTY

         11   PERCENT?

         12   A.  THE CONTRACT SPECIFIES FIFTY PERCENT, THAT'S CORRECT.

         13   Q.  AND EARTHLINK'S PERCENTAGE THAT THEY CAME CLOSE TO WAS

         14   WHAT, SIR?

         15   A.  I AM SORRY.  YOU'RE ASKING ABOUT NETCOM OR EARTHLINK?

         16   Q.  I AM NOW ASKING ABOUT EARTHLINK.  I ASKED YOU FIRST

         17   ABOUT NETCOM, WHICH HAD A FIFTY-PERCENT REQUIREMENT.  AND

         18   NOW I AM ASKING ABOUT EARTHLINK'S PERCENTAGE.  WHAT WAS

         19   THEIR REQUIREMENT?

         20   A.  EARTHLINK, I BELIEVE, WAS 75 PERCENT, AND REFERRING TO

         21   THE EXHIBIT FROM SUSAN NORBERG, IT TRACKS THEM AS 57.6

         22   PERCENT.

         23   Q.  AS OF WHAT DATE?

         24   A.  APRIL-TO-JUNE QUARTER OF 1997.

         25             AND IT SHOWS A FORECAST FOR THE JULY-TO-SEPTEMBER
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          1   QUARTER OF 72.8 PERCENT, WHICH, AS I SAID, IS CLOSE.  BUT

          2   THAT'S A FORECAST, SO I CAN'T SAY FOR SURE THAT THAT'S WHAT

          3   THEY DID.

          4   Q.  AND WE HAD SOME NUMBERS FOR OCTOBER THROUGH DECEMBER,

          5   DID WE NOT, SIR?  THAT'S HOW WE GOT ON --

          6   A.  YES, THE PRELIMINARY NUMBERS.

          7   Q.  AND WHAT WAS THEIR PERCENTAGE IN THOSE

          8   OCTOBER-TO-DECEMBER PRELIMINARY NUMBERS THAT STARTED US DOWN

          9   THIS PATH BEFORE THE BREAK?  WHAT'S EARTHLINK'S PERCENTAGE

         10   THERE?

         11   A.  80.6 PERCENT.

         12   Q.  80.6 PERCENT?

         13   A.  CORRECT.

         14   Q.  NOW, LET ME TURN TO CONCENTRIC.  AND THE DOCUMENT THAT

         15   YOU WERE REFERRING TO ABOUT CONCENTRIC SHOWS THAT IN THE

         16   OCTOBER-TO-DECEMBER PRELIMINARY NUMBERS, IE'S PERCENTAGE IS

         17   ONLY 33.6 PERCENT, CORRECT, FOR CONCENTRIC?

         18   A.  YES, BUT THAT WHOLE COLUMN IS PRELIMINARY DATA.  SO I DO

         19   NOT KNOW WHETHER THAT INFORMATION IS ACCURATE FOR

         20   CONCENTRIC.  I DON'T KNOW WHETHER THE 80.6 PERCENT NUMBER IS

         21   ACCURATE FOR EARTHLINK.

         22   Q.  WELL, IT WAS CERTAINLY AS ACCURATE AS YOU COULD MAKE IT

         23   WHEN THIS DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED?

         24   A.  YES, BUT IT IS LABELED "PRELIMINARY."

         25   Q.  AND, SIR, IF THERE IS ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION THAT YOU
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          1   KNOW WHERE IT IS, WE WOULD BE HAPPY TO HAVE THAT, THAT SHOWS

          2   WHAT THE FINAL NUMBERS ARE.

          3   A.  AS WOULD I.

          4   Q.  NOW, LET ME SHOW YOU WHAT I THINK OUR FINAL NUMBER IS

          5   FOR CONCENTRIC FOR THE MONTH OF MARCH OF 1998.

          6             MR. BOIES:  IN THAT CONNECTION, I WOULD ASK THAT

          7   THE WITNESS BE SHOWN AND I WOULD OFFER GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT

          8   1798.

          9             MR. HOLLEY:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

         10             THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT 1798 IS ADMITTED.

         11                                   (WHEREUPON, PLAINTIFF'S

         12                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 1798 WAS

         13                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)

         14   BY MR. BOIES:

         15   Q.  NOW, THIS IS A REPORT FROM CONCENTRIC FOR -- THE FIRST

         16   PAGE -- THE MONTH OF MARCH OF 1998; CORRECT, SIR?

         17   A.  YES.

         18   Q.  AND THIS SHOWS THAT ALL OF THE COPIES OF BROWSERS

         19   DISTRIBUTED WERE INTERNET EXPLORER AND, IN FACT, THERE WAS A

         20   NET RETURN OF NON-MIRCOSOFT WEB BROWSERS, CORRECT?

         21   A.  IF THAT'S WHAT IT MEANS TO HAVE THESE NUMBERS IN

         22   PARENTHESES, YES.

         23   Q.  THE TOTAL NUMBER OF COPIES OF INTERNET EXPLORER

         24   DISTRIBUTED THROUGH CHANNELS WHERE INTERNET EXPLORER IS

         25   DISTRIBUTED AS THE ONLY WEB BROWSER WAS 37,855, CORRECT,

                                                                              59

          1   SIR?

          2   A.  THAT'S RIGHT.

          3   Q.  AND THE TOTAL NUMBER OF NON-MIRCOSOFT WEB BROWSERS

          4   DISTRIBUTED MONTHLY THROUGH ALL CHANNELS WERE, IN

          5   PARENTHESES, 1,345?

          6   A.  YES.

          7   Q.  AND DOES THE FACT THAT IT'S IN PARENTHESES INDICATE TO

          8   YOU THAT THAT SHOWS A NET RETURN OF NON-MIRCOSOFT WEB

          9   BROWSERS?

         10   A.  THAT'S WHAT I WOULD GUESS, YES.

         11   Q.  NOW, LET ME JUST SPEND A MOMENT ON THE CATEGORY OF THE

         12   TOTAL NUMBER OF COPIES OF INTERNET EXPLORER DISTRIBUTED

         13   THROUGH ALL CHANNELS WHERE INTERNET EXPLORER IS DISTRIBUTED

         14   AS THE ONLY WEB BROWSER.

         15             WHEN YOU WERE COMPILING THE NUMBERS THAT YOU DID

         16   FOR FOUR COMPANIES FOR CERTAIN QUARTERS THAT IS ATTACHED TO

         17   YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY AND TO WHICH YOU REFERRED EARLIER

         18   TODAY --

         19   A.  I BELIEVE THAT IS THREE COMPANIES.

         20   Q.  THAT'S WHAT?

         21   A.  I BELIEVE THAT'S THREE COMPANIES.

         22   Q.  THREE COMPANIES?  WHICH WERE THEY?

         23   A.  CONCENTRIC, EARTHLINK, AND NETCOM.

         24   Q.  OKAY.  AND THOSE ARE NUMBERS FOR THOSE THREE COMPANIES

         25   ONLY FOR SELECTED QUARTERS, CORRECT?
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          1   A.  FROM THE BEGINNING OF THE PROGRAM, THE FOURTH QUARTER OF

          2   1996, THROUGH THE END OF 1997.

          3   Q.  NOW, FOR EXAMPLE, THOSE NUMBERS FOR CONCENTRIC DO NOT

          4   INCLUDE THE CONCENTRIC NUMBERS IN 1998, LIKE THE ONES HERE?

          5   A.  NO, THEY DO NOT.

          6   Q.  WERE THOSE NUMBERS, NEVERTHELESS, TAKEN OFF FORMS LIKE

          7   THIS?

          8   A.  YES.

          9   Q.  AND WHEN YOU LIST THE NUMBER OF COPIES OF INTERNET

         10   EXPLORER DISTRIBUTED IN YOUR CHART, YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT THE

         11   NUMBER OF COPIES OF INTERNET EXPLORER DISTRIBUTED THROUGH

         12   ALL CHANNELS WHERE INTERNET EXPLORER IS DISTRIBUTED AS THE

         13   ONLY WEB BROWSER; CORRECT, SIR?

         14   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.

         15   Q.  SO THAT IF THESE ISP'S DISTRIBUTED INTERNET EXPLORER

         16   THROUGH CHANNELS THROUGH WHICH THEY DISTRIBUTED SOME

         17   INTERNET EXPLORER AND SOME NETSCAPE, THOSE COPIES OF

         18   INTERNET EXPLORER WOULD NOT SHOW UP EITHER ON THIS FORM OR

         19   IN YOUR CHART, CORRECT?

         20   A.  NO.  I DON'T THINK THAT THAT IS TRUE.  I THINK THAT WHAT

         21   THE ISP'S WOULD REPORT TO US WOULD BE HOW MANY COPIES OF

         22   INTERNET EXPLORER THEY DISTRIBUTED AND HOW MANY COPIES OF

         23   NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR THEY DISTRIBUTED.

         24             AND I THINK, TYPICALLY, THESE COMPANIES DISTRIBUTE

         25   ONE BROWSER OR THE OTHER.  I DON'T THINK THERE IS A WHOLE
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          1   LOT OF CASES WHERE THEY DISTRIBUTE BOTH.

          2   Q.  FIRST OF ALL, LET'S DEAL WITH WHAT THE FORM SAYS.

          3   A.  OKAY.

          4   Q.  OKAY.  WHEN IT'S TALKING ABOUT NON-MIRCOSOFT WEB

          5   BROWSERS, IT SAYS IT'S THE NUMBER DISTRIBUTED THROUGH ALL

          6   CHANNELS, CORRECT?

          7   A.  YES, IT DOES.

          8   Q.  WHEN IT'S TALKING ABOUT THE NUMBER OF COPIES OF INTERNET

          9   EXPLORER DISTRIBUTED, THOUGH, IT'S ALL CHANNELS WHERE

         10   INTERNET EXPLORER IS DISTRIBUTED AS THE ONLY WEB BROWSER,

         11   CORRECT?

         12   A.  THAT IS WHAT IT SAYS, MR. BOIES, YES.

         13   Q.  AND DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO BELIEVE THAT THIS CHART IS

         14   NOT ACCURATE?

         15   A.  NO.  I DON'T HAVE ANY REASON TO BELIEVE THIS CHART IS

         16   NOT ACCURATE, BUT YOU SEEM TO IMPLY THERE WOULD BE LARGE

         17   QUANTITIES OF INTERNET EXPLORER THAT THEY DISTRIBUTED THAT

         18   WAS NOT COUNTED ON THIS CHART.  AND I JUST DON'T THINK THAT

         19   THAT WOULD BE TRUE.

         20   Q.  BUT YOU DON'T KNOW THAT, DO YOU, SIR -- AT LEAST NOT

         21   FROM THIS FORM?

         22   A.  FROM THIS FORM, YOU DO NOT KNOW THAT.  THAT'S CORRECT.

         23   BUT I THINK IN TERMS OF THE REAL WORLD, I THINK THAT THAT IS

         24   VERY UNLIKELY.  I THINK THAT ISP'S REPORTED TO US THE NUMBER

         25   OF COPIES OF INTERNET EXPLORER THAT THEY SHIPPED AND THE
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          1   NUMBER OF COPIES OF NON-MIRCOSOFT WEB BROWSERS THAT THEY

          2   SHIPPED.

          3   Q.  BUT, SIR, IF THAT WAS GOING TO BE THE CASE, WHY DIDN'T

          4   YOU JUST HAVE THE NUMBER OF COPIES OF INTERNET EXPLORER

          5   DESCRIBED THE WAY YOU DID THE NON-MIRCOSOFT BROWSER?

          6   A.  I DIDN'T DESIGN THE FORM, SIR.  I CAN'T ANSWER THAT.

          7   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, LET ME GO BACK TO THE QUESTION THAT I WAS

          8   ASKING WHEN YOU BROUGHT UP CONCENTRIC AND EARTHLINK.  IS IT

          9   THE CASE THAT WHAT YOU WERE TRYING TO DO WITH THE ISP'S WAS

         10   TO PREVENT THE ISP'S FROM PRESENTING INTERNET EXPLORER AND

         11   NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR SIDE BY SIDE AND ALLOWING THE CONSUMER TO

         12   CHOOSE BETWEEN THEM?

         13   A.  WHAT WE WANTED TO DO, SIR, WAS TO ENCOURAGE THE

         14   DISTRIBUTION OF INTERNET EXPLORER.  ESPECIALLY IN THE EARLY

         15   DAYS WHEN WE HAD NO DISTRIBUTION OF INTERNET EXPLORER

         16   THROUGH ISP'S, WHEN WE HAD VERY, VERY SMALL MARKET SHARE, WE

         17   WERE CONCERNED WITH HOW THE BROWSERS WERE PRESENTED.

         18             WE WERE VERY CONCERNED THAT IF THE USER SAW

         19   NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR SIDE BY SIDE WITH INTERNET EXPLORER, AND

         20   NETSCAPE HAVING ALL OF THE MIND SHARE AND USAGE SHARE, WE

         21   WOULD LOSE ALL OF THOSE, OR THE MAJORITY OF THOSE DECISIONS.

         22             SO WE DID SPECIFICALLY ASK THAT ISP'S DISTRIBUTE

         23   INTERNET EXPLORER BY ITSELF WHEN THEY DISTRIBUTED INTERNET

         24   EXPLORER, SO THAT WE WOULD NOT LOSE ALL OF THOSE

         25   SIDE-BY-SIDE USER CHOICES.
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          1   Q.  LET ME JUST FOLLOW UP ON THAT.  WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS

          2   THAT THE PURPOSE BEHIND THESE SHIPMENT RESTRICTIONS AND

          3   PERCENTAGES WE'VE BEEN TALKING ABOUT WAS BECAUSE YOU WERE

          4   WORRIED THAT PRESENTING INTERNET EXPLORER AND NETSCAPE

          5   NAVIGATOR SIDE BY SIDE WOULD RESULT IN YOUR LOSING OUT TO

          6   NETSCAPE BECAUSE NETSCAPE HAD HIGHER MARKET SHARE, HIGHER

          7   MIND SHARE, AND HIGHER PRESENCE IN THE MARKET?

          8   A.  YES.  THEY HAD VERY HIGH USAGE SHARE.  WE WERE NOWHERE.

          9   WE WERE THE JOHNNY-COME-LATELY TO THE INTERNET, AND WE WERE

         10   CONCERNED THAT THAT WOULD NOT REALLY HELP OUR DISTRIBUTION

         11   AND SHARE.

         12   Q.  WELL, IT WAS MORE THAN THAT IT WOULD NOT HELP YOUR

         13   DISTRIBUTION AND SHARE.  YOU WERE CONCERNED THAT IF YOU

         14   PRESENTED THE CONSUMER WITH A CHOICE OF THE TWO BROWSERS

         15   SIDE BY SIDE, THEY WOULD, FOR THE REASONS THAT YOU'VE

         16   IDENTIFIED, PICK NETSCAPE RATHER THAN YOURS, RIGHT?

         17   A.  YES.  THAT'S RIGHT.

         18   Q.  AND THESE PERCENTAGE SPECIFICATIONS OR RESTRICTIONS IN

         19   THE ISP CONTRACTS WERE DESIGNED TO BE SURE THAT THE ISP'S

         20   SHIPPED YOUR BROWSER WITHOUT NETSCAPE'S, CORRECT?

         21   A.  YES.  THAT THEY WOULD PRESENT TO USERS INTERNET EXPLORER

         22   AS THE BROWSER THAT THEY WERE SHIPPING TO THEM, UNLESS THAT

         23   USER REQUESTED SOMETHING ELSE, AND THERE WERE ALLOWANCES IN

         24   THE CONTRACTS OF A VARIETY OF KINDS THAT WOULD ALLOW THEM TO

         25   DO DISTRIBUTION DEALS FOR NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR.
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          1             THE EARTHLINK CONTRACT, IN PARTICULAR, ALLOWS THEM

          2   TO HAVE MANY, MANY, MANY -- OVER A THOUSAND PREVIOUS

          3   CONTRACTS REFERENCED WHERE THEY HAVE FULL ABILITY TO SHIP

          4   NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR.

          5   Q.  THAT IS, EARTHLINK ALREADY HAD CONTRACTS IN FORCE WHEN

          6   THEY SIGNED UP WITH YOU, RIGHT?

          7   A.  THEY HAD RELATIONSHIPS WITH ABOUT 1200 COMPANIES, AND

          8   THEY WANTED EXEMPTION FROM THE DISTRIBUTION CLAUSE FOR THOSE

          9   COMPANIES, AND WE GAVE IT TO THEM.

         10   Q.  NOW, EXCEPT FOR EXCEPTIONS LIKE THAT, THE ISP'S WERE

         11   TOLD THAT THEY COULD NOT EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLY THE

         12   AVAILABILITY OF ANOTHER BROWSER, CORRECT?  THAT'S WHAT THEY

         13   AGREED?

         14   A.  YES.  WE DID HAVE CLAUSES LIKE THAT IN OUR CONTRACT.

         15   Q.  AND ALL I'M TRYING TO DO IS ESTABLISH THAT THE REASON

         16   FOR THAT WAS BECAUSE YOU BELIEVED THAT IF THE CONSUMER HAD A

         17   CHOICE OF THE TWO BROWSERS SIDE BY SIDE, THE USER WOULD, IN

         18   THE VAST MAJORITY OF CASES OR IN THE MAJORITY OF CASES, PICK

         19   NETSCAPE FOR THE REASONS THAT YOU'VE IDENTIFIED, CORRECT?

         20   A.  YES.  THAT'S RIGHT.

         21   Q.  NOW, LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 211,

         22   WHICH IS GOING TO HAVE AN ATTACHMENT TO IT THAT IS VERY

         23   DIFFICULT TO READ, BUT IT IS THE BEST COPY THAT WE HAVE FROM

         24   THE DOCUMENT PRODUCTION.

         25             NOW, THIS IS A TWO-PAGE DOCUMENT WITH A SCHEDULE
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          1   ATTACHED TO IT.  AND THE FIRST PAGE CONSISTS -- OR THE FIRST

          2   TWO PAGES CONSIST OF TWO E-MAILS; IS THAT CORRECT, SIR?

          3   A.  YES.

          4   Q.  AND IS THIS MATERIAL THAT WAS BEING DEVELOPED FOR YOU TO

          5   PRESENT?

          6   A.  YES, IT WAS.

          7   Q.  AND YOU TALK ABOUT ON PAGE 1 -- OR SUSAN NORBERG TALKS

          8   ABOUT, ON THE SUBJECT OF CHANGES THAT YOU HAD REQUESTED TO

          9   CERTAIN SLIDES, TOP ISP'S AND BROADREACH ISP'S, CORRECT?

         10   A.  YES.  THERE SEEMS TO BE A FULL, ALMOST SIX-MONTH

         11   DIFFERENCE BETWEEN WHEN THE FIRST MAIL IS SENT AND THE

         12   SECOND MAIL IS SENT.  AND I DON'T KNOW WHY THAT WOULD BE.  I

         13   CERTAINLY DIDN'T PREPARE FOR PRESENTATIONS OVER A SIX-MONTH

         14   PERIOD.

         15   Q.  THIS IS THE DOCUMENT AS IT WAS PRODUCED FROM MICROSOFT'S

         16   FILES.

         17   A.  OH, I DON'T DOUBT THAT, SIR.  I'M JUST CURIOUS AS TO WHY

         18   THERE WOULD BE A SIX-MONTH LAG.

         19   Q.  DO YOU HAVE ANY EXPLANATION OR RECOLLECTION OF THIS?

         20   A.  I DON'T RECALL THIS PARTICULAR E-MAIL.

         21   Q.  IF YOU WANT TO TAKE A MOMENT TO LOOK AT IT, LET ME KNOW

         22   WHEN YOU'RE THROUGH.

         23   A.  OKAY.  SURE.

         24             THE COURT:  WELL, WHY DON'T WE TAKE THE NOONTIME

         25   RECESS NOW, AND WE'LL PICK IT UP AFTER LUNCH.
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          1             MR. BOIES:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

          2             (WHEREUPON, THE ABOVE-ENTITLED MATTER WAS RECESSED

          3   FOR LUNCH AT 12:18 P.M.)

          4                     CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

          5        THIS RECORD IS CERTIFIED BY THE UNDERSIGNED REPORTER TO

          6   BE THE OFFICIAL TRANSCRIPT OF THE PROCEEDINGS INDICATED.

          7                                 ______________________________

          8                                         PHYLLIS MERANA
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